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ESG & Climate Change Performance Highlights

75% energy 
dependency 
on Renewable 
Sources (Solar + 
Wind)

Low air emission 
parameters (in 
compliance with 
permissible 
limits) + initiatives 
for odour 
management

12% Reduction 
in per KWH Cost 
achieved through 
introduction of 
energy conserving 
initiatives

Best Hazardous 
Waste 
Management 
Company
 by CII, 2021
(South Region)

Young talent base: 
93% workforce 
being <40 Yrs; 60% 
employee talent 
comprises of Post 
Graduates

Tech & Automation 
Initiatives in-place 

for more than a 
decade for Energy 

Conservation

85% Waste Water 
generated at 

Harohalli site 
recycled and reused

Best Liquid Waste 
Management 

Company
 by CII, 2021 

(South Region)

Contributions to 
local organisations 
for CSR initiatives + 
lake redevelopment 

at Bommasandra

12% Women hold 
Managerial positions 

at Anthem, 17% 
workforce being 

Women
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Five Year Financial Summary

As at March 31, 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholder’s Funds

Equity Share Capital 837.98 837.98 837.98 848.46 877.63

Reserves & Surplus 24,448.37 32284.84 41,348.74 69,298.93 1,34,668.60

25,286.35 33,122.82 42,186.72 70,147.39 1,35,546.22

Loans 24,067.18 16,045.71 12,087.17 10,001.08 3,549.10

Other Liabilities 11,304.33 22,608.63 24,458.18 23,224.98 22,822.22

TOTAL 60,657.86 71,777.16 78,732.07 1,03,373.45 1,61,917.54

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets

Net Block 32,481.14 31,565.47 30,557.64 36,140.62 32,901.00

Capital Work-in Progress 610.96 1,155.46 4,980.87 1,858.53 15,267.62

33,092.10 32,720.93 35,538.51 37,999.15 48,168.62

Investments 667.11 7,262.48 9,866.12 20,927.34 27,297.93

Other Assets

Inventories 8,276.65 9,155.75 12,540.61 3,506.34 5,823.00

Receivables 12,180.48 12196.15 10,998.83 25,777.70 32,930.63

Cash and Bank Balances 455.87 1,389.87 2,242.72 4,062.10 34,886.52

Others 5,985.65 9051.98 7,545.28 10,788.03 12,810.84

26,898.65 31,793.75 33,327.44 44,134.17 86,450.99

TOTAL 60,657.86 71,777.16 78,732.07 1,03,373.45 1,61,917.54

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET	 (₹ in Lakhs)

Notes:

i) Cash and Bank Balances excludes Current Investments which represents investments of surplus funds
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Year ending March 31, 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

INCOME

Sales 46,124.20  62,602.86 63,272.03 110,324.03 123,125.60

Other Operating Income 1,090.31  2,067.85 2,076.11  3,720.91 4,898.05

TOTAL REVENUE 47,214.51 64,670.71 65,348.13 114,044.94 128,023.66

EXPENSES

Cost of Material 20,637.61 26,112.24 24,642.78              40,788.22 41,029.77

Employee benefits expense 8,228.53 10,722.69 12,014.61 14,218.52 13,751.39

Other expenses 5,243.64 8,593.41 8,422.85 14,543.75 11799.10

TOTAL EXPENSES 34,109.78 45,428.34 45,080.23 69,550.49 66,580.26

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST, 
DEPRECIATION & TAX

13104.73 19242.37 20,267.90 44,494.45 61,443.40

Finance costs 1,776.48 1,819.32 2,043.23 1,696.63 1,008.54

Depreciation and Amortization 5,284.73 6,053.44 6,157.52 6,239.90 5,775.64

Profit/(Loss) before 
exceptional items and tax 

6,043.52 11,369.61 12,067.15 36,557.92 54,659.23

Exceptional items

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6,043.52 11,369.61 12,067.15 36,557.92 54,659.23

Current tax 2,272.28 4,285.44 3325.43 9,669.93 14,238.89

Deferred tax 189.05 -622.56 -528.55 -242.63 -178.69

Total Tax expense 2,461.33 3,662.88 2,796.88 9,427.30 14,060.20

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 3,582.19 7,706.73 9,270.27 27,130.62 40,599.02

Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss)

- -61.76 -219.74 -34.02 -83.34

Total Comprehensive Income/
(Loss) for the period

3,582.19 7,644.97 9,050.53 27,096.60 40,515.68

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS	 (₹ in Lakhs)
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Board of Directors

Mr. Ajay Bhardwaj: Chief Executive Officer, Founder, 
Chairman and Managing Director, completed his B. 
Tech. in Chemical Engineering from IIT Delhi in 1982 and 
received his Master’s from Louisiana State University, 
Baton Rouge, LA in 1984 after receiving a Fellowship. 
He started his career with Max India and then worked 
for Biocon, starting off as one of the earliest team 
members at Biocon, who along with Mrs. Kiran 
Mazumdar Shaw, helped build the company. As the 
President, Marketing, at Biocon he was instrumental in 
Biocon’s rapid growth. He helped in building the brand 
Biocon as well as spearheaded the company’s foray 
into new areas like life sciences, contract research and 
clinical research.

Dr. Ganesh Sambasivam: Chief Scientific Officer, Co-Founder 
and Director, received his Ph.D. in Chemistry from Pune 
University, India in 1993. He did his undergraduate studies in 
Chemistry at Madras University and Postgraduate studies 
with a Fellowship from the National Chemical Laboratory, 
and Master’s program in Organic Chemistry at the University 
of Poona. He had worked for more than a decade with 
Syngene International Private Limited, where he was Chief 
Scientific Officer prior to founding Anthem. He has extensive 
experience in process R&D related to building blocks and 
reagents in combinatorial chemistry, generic drugs and 
novel flavor chemicals for food industry applications. 

Board of Directors
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Board of Directors

Mr. K.C. Ravindra: Chief Operating Officer, Co-Founder 
and Director, received his B.Tech, in chemical 
engineering from Bangalore University in 1990. He 
started his career in industrial production in 1990 and 
worked at worked at Cipla (Head of anti-bacterials 
division), Production Manager at Recon Limited (now 
Hikal) and General Manager, Operations at Biocon. 
He has played a major role in establishing scale-up 
process at Biocon, where he had built state of the 
art manufacturing facilities complying with global 
standards and taken them through USFDA and 
European regulatory approvals. He has wide exposure 
to international inspections from regulatory bodies like 
USFDA and customer audits.

Mr. Satish Chander: Nominee Director, holds a Mechanical 
Engineering degree from IIT Chennai and a Post Graduate 
Diploma in Management from IIM, Kolkata. He started 
his career as a management consultant at Accenture, 
India and where he worked across pharma, FMCG, auto 
ancillary sectors, handling projects in strategy, post-merger 
integration, supply chain restructuring and procurement 
optimization. He was then part of JP Morgan’s equity 
research team covering Indian companies in the oil & gas 
sector. Currently, Satish is a Satish Partner at True North, 
leading investments in the healthcare and life sciences 
sector.



BOARD OF 
DIRECTOR’S
REPORT
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 Board of Director’s Report

 Board of Director’s Report

Particulars Standalone Financials Consolidated Financials

Financial Year 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Revenue 123,125.60 1,10,324.03 123,125.60 1,10,324.03

Other income 4,898.05 3,720.91 4,898.05 3,720.91

Total Income 128,023.66 1,14,044.94 128,023.66 1,14,044.94

Expenses:

Operating Expenditure 67,588.79 71,247.12 67,633.93 71,248.47

Depreciation & Amortization 5,775.64 6,239.90 5,775.64 6,239.90

Total Expenses: 73,364.43 77,487.02 73,409.57 77,488.36

Profit before Tax (PBT) 54,659.23 36,557.92 54,614.09 36,556.57

Less: Tax Expenses 14,060.20 9,427.30 14,060.14 9,427.23

Profit after Tax (PAT) 40,599.02 27,130.61 40,553.95 27,129.34

Opening bal: Retained Earnings 60,793.08 36,270.87 60,791.93 36,270.87

Profits for the year 40,599.02 27,130.61 40,553.95 27,129.34

Adjustment during the year 133.30 104.77 133.30 104.77

Less: Dividend (inclusive of 
dividend tax)

0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12

Less: Transfer to General 
Reserves

4,059.90 2,713.06 4,055.39 2,712.93

Closing bal: Retained Earnings 97,465.38 60,793.08 97,423.67 60,791.93

A) Financial Highlights	 (₹ in Lakhs)

Dear Shareholders,

We present you the Sixteenth Annual Report on the performance of the Company along with the audited standalone 
and consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
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 Board of Director’s Report

B) Performance Overview 

The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. 

On a standalone level, the Company witnessed:

	� Operating Revenue growth of 11.60% in FY2022 
compared to the previous year

	� PBT increased to Rs. 54,659.23 lacs, as compared to 
Rs. 36,557.92 lacs in FY2021

	� PAT for FY2022 & FY2021 was Rs. 40,599.02 lacs 
& Rs. 27,130.61 lacs respectively substantiating a 
growth of 49.64% over the previous year

	� Cash balances and liquid investments improved 
to Rs. 61,799.85 lacs as on March 31, 2022, as 
compared to Rs. 24,604.83 lacs as on March 31, 2021, 
aided by a capital infusion of Rs. 247.50 lacs and 
internal accruals 

On a consolidated level, the Company witnessed:

	� Operating Revenue growth of 11.60% in FY2022 
compared to the previous year

	� PBT increased to Rs. 54,614.09 lacs, as compared to 
Rs. 36,556.57 lacs in FY2021

	� PAT for FY2022 & FY2021 was Rs. 40,553.95 lacs 
& Rs. 27,129.34 lacs respectively substantiating a 
growth of 49.48% over the previous year

	� Cash balances and liquid investments improved to 
Rs. 61,803.61 lacs as on March 31, 2022, as compared 
to Rs. 24,619.43 lacs as on March 31, 2021 

C) Dividend

The Board of Directors are pleased to declare a dividend 
on 0.05% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022.

D) Transfer to Reserves

The Board of Directors propose to transfer Rs. 4,059.90 
lacs to the General Reserves and the balance of 
Rs.97,465.38 lacs will be retained in the Profit and Loss 
account.

D) Subsidiary Companies / Joint Venture

The Company has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary as on 
31.03.2022. 

As per Sec. 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, where 
a company has one or more subsidiaries, it shall, 
in addition to its financial statement, prepare a 
consolidated financial statement of the Company and all 
subsidiaries in the same form and manner as that of its 
own and also attach along with its financial statement, 
a separate statement containing the salient features of 
the financial statement of its subsidiaries. 

In accordance with the above, the consolidated financial 
statement of the Company and its subsidiary’s is 
prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards 
21 and 27 as specified in the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, form part of the annual report. Further, 
a statement containing the salient features of the 
financial statement of our subsidiary in prescribed 
format AOC-1 is attached as “Annexure 1”to the  
Board Report.

F) Credit Rating

ICRA Limited (ICRA) had upgraded the rating to [ICRA] 
AA- (Stable) / [ICRA] A1+ for the Company’s fund based 
and non-fund based credit facilities indicating very 
strong degree of safety regarding timely payment of 
financial obligations.

G) Number of Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met six (6) times during the 
financial year ending March 31st, 2022. The intervening 
gap between any two meetings was within the period 
prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.
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 Board of Director’s Report

H) Directors:

Mr. Ravindra K.C. (DIN: 01580534), shall retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is 
eligible for reappointment.

I) Director’s Responsibility Statement

In compliance with the section 134 (5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the board of directors hereby confirms the 
following:

	� In the preparation of annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material 
departure, if any;

	� We have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently. We have made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
and of the profit of the company at the end of the 
financial year;

	� We have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

	� We have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis; and

	� We have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively. 

J) Related Party Transactions

In accordance with Section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of contract or 
arrangement entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in Section 188(1) in form AOC-2 is 
attached as “Annexure-2” to this report.

K) Auditors:

	� Statutory Auditors

	¶ M/s. K. P. Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration no. 003135S) were appointed 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office from the conclusion of the 13th 
Annual General Meeting held on September 
30, 2019 until the conclusion of the 18th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the 
calendar year 2024.

	¶ Board’s response on Auditors Qualification, 
Reservation or Adverse Remark or Disclaimer made

	D There are no qualifications, reservations 
or adverse remarks made by the Statutory 
Auditors in their report.

	� Cost Auditors

	¶ The Cost Records of the Company are maintained 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. In the current year, 
the foreign exchange revenue of the Company for 
the preceding Financial Year i.e.2021-22 exceeds 
seventy five per cent (75%) of its total revenues 
and thereby the Company is exempted from 
conducting cost audit for the Financial Year 2022-
23 pursuant to Rule 4 clause 3(i) of the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.  

Board Meeting Date Ajay Bhardwaj
Ganesh 

Sambasivam
Ravindra KC

Satish Chander 
Subbanna

06.04.2021 √ √ √ NA

09.04.2021 √ √ √ √

19.07.2021 √ √ √ √

19.10.2021 √ √ √ √

17.11.2021 √ √ √ √

31.01.2022 √ Absent √ √
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	� Secretarial Auditors

	¶ Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder, M/s 
V. Sreedharan & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries were appointed to conduct the 
secretarial audit of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report for 
the Financial Year 2021-22 does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark 
or disclaimer and is appended herewith as 
“Annexure 3” to the Boards’ report.

L) Annual Return

The Annual Return of the Company as per the provisions 
of Section 134(3)(a) and 92(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013, will be available on the website of the Company at 
www.anthembio.com.

M) Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
consists of the following directors as on 31st March 
2022:

1. Mr. Ajay Bhardwaj (Chairman)

2. Mr. Ravindra K C 

3. Mr. Ganesh Sambasivam.

The Committee had formulated the CSR policy as 
required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the relevant rules made thereunder. As per 
the provisions the total amount to be spent by the 
Company on CSR activities for the Financial Year 2021-
22 was Rs.399.96 Lacs. The Committee in its meeting 
held on 22nd April 2022 had proposed to revise the 
existing Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and 
recommended the same to the Board for approval and 
adoption. The Board in its meeting held on 30th May, 
2022, had approved the new CSR policy and the same is 
available on the Company’s website. The annual report 
on our CSR activities is appended as “Annexure-4” to 
the Board’s Report.

N) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal), Act, 2013

The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment Policy 
in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. An internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees 
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are 
covered under this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral. 
During the financial year under review, no complaints of 
sexual harassment were filed.

O) Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings & Out Flow pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

The information required under Section 134 (3) (m) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 with respect to these 
matters is given below:

a) Conservation of Energy

The steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy:

	¶ Increase in dependency on renewable source 
of energy (Wind and Solar energy)  

	¶ Anthem has increased the dependency on 
renewable energy by utilizing wind energy 
and solar energy as well, through third-party 
and were able to achieve the dependency on 
renewable energy for Unit – 1 as 84% (Wind 
+ Solar energy) vis-à-vis dependency of 
renewable energy for Unit – 2 as  68.9% (Wind 
+ Solar energy). On an overall level, 75% 
energy is sourced from renewable sources 
for the financial year ending March 31, 2022

	¶ This has resulted in significant reduction in 
the greenhouse gas emission ((about 20.84 
Lac kg of CO2e from Unit – 1 and 57.57 Lac kg 
CO2e from Unit – 2)  

	¶ The wind energy procurement is through a 
group captive power purchase arrangement

	� Utilization of Biogas generated in ETP operations 
as an alternate fuel for generation of steam in 
the Boiler resulting in CO2 reduction by producing 
steam from Biogas

	¶ The Effluent Treatment Plant is designed to 
treat the waste aqueous stream in a Up flow 
anaerobic sludge reactor (UASBR) followed 
by two stage aeration. During the 	 process 
of anaerobic digestion in the UASBR biogas is 
generated. The plant is designed to collect and 
utilize this biogas 

	¶ Anthem has also invested in an anaerobic 
digester for digestion of spent cell mass 
generated during fermentation operations. 
This treatment also generates biogas which is 
refined and collected for reuse

	¶ Anthem has analyzed and made extensive 
studies for utilization of Biogas generated. 
Following the data collected, Anthem has now 
invested in a steam boiler wherein we intend 
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to utilize the biogas to generate steam for 
plant operations.  Trials has been successful 
in using biogas as an alternate fuel in boiler. 
This is in the process of being installed and 
commissioned.

	� Reduction of quantity of sludge generated from ETP 
towards landfill

	¶ Anthem has put effort to reduce the moisture 
content of the sludge generated through Effluent 
Treatment Plant operations, with the objective 
of reducing the waste disposed for landfill. The 
moisture content has been reduced from 90% to 
30% resulting in overall reduction in the quantity 
of sludge disposed off for landfill.

	� Anthem has been awarded “Best Hazardous Waste 
Management Company” and “Best Liquid Waste 
Management Company” by Confederation of Indian 
Industry (CII) in 2021 (South Region)

b) Technology absorption: The Company continues to 
adopt and use the latest technologies to improve the 
productivity and quality of its services and products. 

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

	¶ Foreign Exchange earnings:	Rs. 100,524.67 lacs

	¶ Foreign Exchange outgo:	 Rs. 18,423.79 lacs

P) Expenditure on Research & Developments:

Company has its own in house R&D centre, with best 
in class infrastructure facility equipped with modern 
plant and machinery and scientific labs to carry out the 
scientific research and development related activities in 
the field of custom synthesis and biological / biosimilar 
activities. Innovation and research are critical to 
ensuring better health and creating financial value. In 
Financial Year 2021-22, our total R&D spend was 2.07% 
of turnover. 

	

Financial Year 2021-22 2020-21

a. Capital expenditure 75.51 417.74
b. Other recurring 

expenditure
2,478.80 688.73

(a+b) (Rs. In Lakhs) 2,554.31 1,106.47

Q) Significant Events During Financial Year 2021-22

(a) PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company had executed share subscription and 
share purchase agreement dated 1st March 2021, by and 
amongst the Company, Viridity Tone LLP (the “Investor”), 
Mr Ajay Bhardwaj, Mr Ganesh Sambasivam, Mr K C 
Ravindra, Mr Malay J Barua, Mr Rupesh N Kinekar 
and Mr Satish Sharma. Consequently, the Company 
had issued PAS-4 dated April 5, 2021, and pursuant to 
subscription of new shares by preferential allotment on 
a private placement basis and purchase of shares from 
existing shareholders, Viridity Tone LLP holds 8.32% 
shareholding in the Company on a fully diluted basis. 

(b) ALTERATION OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

The Company had convened an Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting on 9th day of April, 2021, to amend the Articles 
of Association of the Company in total exclusion, 
replacement and substitution of the existing Articles of 
Association of the Company. 

(c) APPOINTMENT OF NOMINEE DIRECTOR

The Board in its meeting held on 9th day of April 2021, 
duly appointed Mr. Satish Chander Subbanna, holding 
Director Identification Number 02849420, nominated 
representative of the Investor viz. Viridity Tone LLP, as 
a Nominee Director on the Board with effect from 9th 
April, 2021.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors commend the continued 
commitment and dedication of the employees at 
all levels. The Directors also wish to acknowledge 
efforts of all the other stakeholders for their valuable 
sustained support and encouragement. It is this unity 
of purpose that breeds success and your Directors 
look forward to receiving similar support and 
encouragement from the larger ANTHEM family in the 
years ahead.

Place: Bangalore

Date: September 06, 2022

For and on Behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Ajay Bhardwaj

Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure 1 to The Board of Director’s Report

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

        (Amount in INR)

S. NO. PARTICULARS DETAILS

1. Name of the subsidiary Neoanthem Lifesciences Private Limited
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the holding company’s reporting period
Same as Holding Company 

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries

NA

4. Share capital 15,00,000
5. Reserves & surplus -
6. Total assets 12,262,481
7. Total Liabilities 12,262,481
8. Investments 0
9. Turnover 0
10. Profit before taxation (4,514,090.00)
11. Provision for taxation 0
12. Profit after taxation (4,507,445.12)
13. Proposed Dividend 0
14. % of shareholding 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1.	 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations			 

•	 M/S. Neoanthem Lifesciences Private Limited, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Anthem Biosciences Private 
Limited, which was incorporated on July 22, 2020. The Company is yet to commence operations.

2.	 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.	

•	 There are no such subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

There are no Associates and/or Joint Ventures with the company as on March 31, 2022.
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Annexure 2 to The Board of Director’s Report

Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NIL

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: NIL

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NIL

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 
188: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 

S.NO. NAME NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP

1 Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd. Tenant / Customer
2 Ishaan Bhardwaj Relative of Managing Director
3 Krithika Ganesh Relative of Director 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

S.NO. NATURE OF TRANSACTION

1 Rent received from Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd. and Supply of goods to Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd.
2 Salary paid to relative of Managing Director
3 Salary paid to relative of Director

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

S.NO. TRANSACTIONS DURATION OF TRANSACTION 
1 Rent received from Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd. 10 years
2 Salary paid to relative of Managing Director 2 years
3 Salary paid to relative of Director 8 months
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(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

S.NO. TRANSACTIONS SALIENT TERMS

1 Rent received from Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd.
As per the agreement entered by the Company with 
Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd. on 24th May 2012.

2 Salary paid to relative of Director
As per the letter of appointment issued by the 
Company dated 18/02/2019.

3 Salary paid to relative of Director
As per the letter of appointment issued by the 
Company dated 26/08/2021.

 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

S.NO. TRANSACTIONS DURATION OF TRANSACTION 

1 Rent received from Anthem Bio Pharma Pvt. Ltd. 24/05/2012
2 Salary paid to relative of Managing Director -
3 Salary paid to relative of Director -

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
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Annexure 3 to The Board of Director’s Report

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to Sub Section (1) of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

For the Financial Year Ended 31.03.2022

To, 

The Members,  

ANTHEM BIOSCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

No. 49, F1 & F2, Canara Bank Road,

Bommasandra Industrial Area, Phase I, 

Bommasandra, Bengaluru- 560099.	

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Anthem Biosciences Private Limited (“the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (the audit period) complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, according to the provisions of: 

I.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

II.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder.

III.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder; 

IV.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period under review);

V.	 Other laws specifically applicable to the Company:

a.	Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

b.	Bio Medical Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 1998

c.	ICH Guidelines (this is the based on which US FDA/ EU Guidelines etc. are created on)

d.	National Biodiversity Act, 2002

e.	Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substance Act, 1985

f.	 Drugs (Control) Act, 1950
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g.	�Local laws laid down by Karnataka State Pollution Control Board (KSPCB), Central Pollution Control Board, 
Ministry of Environment and Forest, National Green Tribunal, Dept. of Factories, Boilers Industrial Safety and 
Health.

h.	FSSAI Regulation 2011.

The Company being a private limited company, the following Regulations prescribed under Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the audit period: 

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021; 

(e)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021;	

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; and

(i)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

As the Company is a private Company, entering agreement with stock exchanges does not arise.  

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meeting.

We have not examined compliance with applicable Financial Laws, like Direct and Indirect Tax Laws, since the same 
have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines and Standards etc., mentioned above.

However, we report that during the year 2020-21 the Company should have spent Rs. 196.54 lakhs towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR). Whereas, the Company has spent Rs. 63.93 lakhs towards CSR during the year 2020-21. 
The balance of Rs. 132.61 lakhs were unspent. Pursuant to sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
the Company should have transferred the unspent CSR amount pertaining to ongoing projects to a separate bank 
account i.e., Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account on or before April 30, 2021. However, the Company has 
transferred the unspent CSR amount on February 05, 2022 to a separate bank account.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent to all the directors for all the Board Meetings held during the period under review. A system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairperson, the decisions of the Board were 
unanimous, and no dissenting views have been recorded.  

We have been informed by the Company that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, and guidelines. 
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The following events/actions were having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc., during the audit period:

a.	 The Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on April 01, 2021, allotted 2,91,673 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 8,475.52 per Equity Shares by way of Preferential Allotment of 
shares on Private Placement basis to Viridity Tone LLP. 

b.	 The Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on April 09, 2021, approved and adopted new 
Articles of Association of the Company in substitution of the existing Articles of Association of the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of the Share Subscription and Purchase Agreement (SSPA) dated March 01, 2021 
and Shareholder’s Agreement (SHA) dated March 01, 2021.

For V. SREEDHARAN & ASSOCIATES						    

Sd/-

(Pradeep B. Kulkarni)

Partner							                                                                        

FCS: 7260; C.P. No: 7835   

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 06, 2022

UDIN:	 F007260D000921591		

Peer Review Certificate: No. 589/2019  

                                                                                                                            

This report (i.e., Form No. MR-3) is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure’ and forms 
an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure’

To, 

The Members, 

ANTHEM BIOSCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

No. 49, F1 & F2, Canara Bank Road,

Bommasandra Industrial Area, Phase I, 

Bommasandra, Bengaluru- 560099

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

7.	 Due to Covid-19 pandemic, we have conducted online verification and examination of records, as facilitated by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing Secretarial Audit Report (Form No. MR-3). 

For V. SREEDHARAN & ASSOCIATES						    

(Pradeep B. Kulkarni)

Partner							                                                                        

FCS: 7260; C.P. No: 7835   

Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 06, 2022

UDIN:	 F007260D000921591			 

Peer Review Certificate: No. 589/2019
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Annexure 4 to The Board of Director’s Report
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8 of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief Outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects proposed to be undertaken:

The Company’s contributions and initiatives towards social welfare have been integral to its business, and it 
shall continue to pursue Corporate Social Responsibility activities (hereinafter referred to as “CSR”) as one of its 
fundamental priorities for a long-term sustainability of business, social wellbeing, and economic growth at large. The 
Company has drafted a CSR policy and the same is available at its website at www.anthembio.com 

The policy inter-alia covers the following:

i.	 Functioning of the CSR Committee

ii.	 Focus Areas:	

a.	 To enhance Education, Differently abled, livelihood

b.	 Encouraging Sports

c.	 Environment, Animal Welfare, Conservation Of Resources

d.	 Gender Equality, Women Empowerment, Old Age Homes, Reducing Inequalities

e.	 Health, Eradicating Hunger, Poverty And Malnutrition, Safe Drinking Water, Sanitation

f.	 Other Sectors (Technology Incubator And Benefits To Armed Forces And Admin

g.	 Overheads)

h.	 Contributions to Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund

i.	 Contributions to Swachh Bharat Kosh

iii.	 Planning, Implementation & Monitoring of CSR

iv.	 Annual Action Plan, Reporting & Documentation

v.	 Treatment of Unspent CSR Obligation

vi.	 Contingency

vii.	Policy Review & Future Amendment

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee of the Company was constituted on 2nd August, 2014 and comprises of the following directors as 
on 31st March 2022:

1.	 Mr. Ajay Bhardwaj (Chairman)

2.	 Mr. Ravindra K C 

3.	 Mr. Ganesh Sambasivam.
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3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years is ₹19,998.23 Lacs

4. �The prescribed CSR expenditure for the financial year 2021-22 is ₹399.96 Lacs, taken at 2% of the above-mentioned 
average net profit.

5. Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year:

i.	 Total amount to be spent during the financial year	 : ₹399.96Lacs 

ii.	 Amount unspent at the end of the financial year	 : ₹ 357.74 Lacs

iii.	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

-1 -2 -3 -4 -5 -6 -7 -8
S. 
No

CSR project or 
activity identified

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Location of

Projects or

Programs

Amount 
outlay

(budget)

project or

program 
wise (₹)

Amount 
spent on

the projects 
or

progarms

(₹)

Cumulative

expenditure

upto the

reporting

period (₹)

Amount spent

direct or

through

implementing

agency

1 Contribution to 
Bommasandra 
Industrial 
Association for 
rejuvenation of 
Bommasandra 
Lake

Clause (iv) 
of Schedule 
VII

Bommasandra ₹20,00,000/- ₹10,00,000/- ₹10,00,000/- Indirect

2 Contribution 
to Foundation 
for innovation 
and technology 
transfer, for 
biopharmaceutical 
technology 
workshop

Clause (i) of 
Schedule VII

Delhi ₹15,00,000/- ₹10,00,000/- ₹10,00,000/- Indirect

3 Contribution to 
Vanavasi Kalyana 
Ashram towards 
development of 
Tribal Community

Clause (iii) 
of Schedule 
VII

Bangalore ₹25,00,000/- ₹15,00,000/- ₹15,00,000/- Indirect

4 Contribution 
to Anganwadi  
towards 
construction of 
school 

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Harohalli ₹4,50,000/- ₹4,30,170/- ₹4,30,170/- Direct

5 Contribution 
towards Covid -19 

Clause (i) 
& (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Harohalli ₹1,00,000/- ₹92,400/- ₹92,400/- Direct

6 Contribution to 
Miss Lakshmi

Clause (iii) 
of Schedule 
VII

Harohalli ₹2,00,000/- ₹2,00,000/- ₹2,00,000/- Direct
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7 Govt School 
(Chickabalapur 
Taluq): GHPS 
Maralakunte

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Chickabalapur 
Taluq

₹35,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

8 Govt School 
(Chickabalapur 
Taluq): GHPS 
Angarekhanahalli

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Chickabalapur 
Taluq

₹17,50,000/- 0 0 Direct

9 Govt School 
(Chickabalapur 
Taluq): GHPS 
Kadadibbur

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Chickabalapur 
Taluq

₹15,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

10 Govt School 
(Chickabalapur 
Taluq): GHPS 
Devasthana 
Hosahalli

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Chickabalapur 
Taluq

₹12,50,000/- 0 0 Direct

11 Govt School 
(Chickabalapur 
Taluq): GHPS 
Gunthapanahalli

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Chickabalapur 
Taluq

₹12,50,000/- 0 0 Direct

12 Govt School 
(Kanakapura 
taluq): P 
Rampura

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Kanakapura 
taluq

₹60,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

13 Govt School 
(Kanakapura 
taluq): GHPS 
ANAMANAHAL-
LINAHALLI

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Kanakapura 
taluq

₹30,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

14 Govt School 
(Kanakapura 
taluq): 
Adanakuppe 
Urdu school

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Kanakapura 
taluq

₹15,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

15 Contribution 
for Govt School 
(Kanakpura 
Taluq): 
Hebbideramatu

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Kanakapura 
taluq

₹30,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

16 Govt School 
(Panchayat Chel-
lur): Kalegow-
danadoddi

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Panchayat 
Chellur

₹15,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

17 Govt School 
(Panchayat 
Chellur): 
Byregowdana 
Valase

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Panchayat 
Chellur

₹30,00,000/- 0 0 Direct

18 Public Toilets 
(Kanakpura 
Taluq): Harohalli

Clause (ii) of 
Schedule VII

Kanakapura 
taluq

₹60,00,000/- 0 0 Direct
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The Company had transferred an amount of Rs. 3,67,78,281/- unspent amount to a specified ‘Unspent CSR account - 
2022’  and has spent Rs. 24,26,083/- in the current financial year. The balance amount will be utilized by the Company 
over period of time considering these are ongoing projects.

6. Details of implementing agency: 

	� Bommasandra Industrial Association: An Industrial association formed by group of people representing 
industries established in that area for the development of the area.

	� Foundation for Innovation and Technology Transfer (FITT) is an industrial interface organization, established at 
the Indian Institute of Technology Delhi (IIT Delhi) as a Registered Society on 9th July 1992. DSIR has recognized 
FITT as a Scientific and Industrial Research Organization (SIRO). The mission of FITT is to be an effective 
Interface with the Industry to foster, promote and sustain commercialization of science and technology in the 
Institute for mutual benefits. For over twenty-five years now, FITT has been in a mission mode for effecting the 
interface between the Institute and the industry and has been devising innovative ways to create partnerships 
and linkages with business and community to enable knowledge transfer for common good.

	� Vanavasi Kalyana Ashram was established in the year 1989 for the purpose of working towards the welfare of 
Tribals/Adivasis(Vanavasis) and other socially and economically backward sections of the society. Their motive 
and goal is to enable these tribes to achieve social inclusion, education and economic growth and stability while 
retaining their core values. The Vanavasi kalyana has taken initiative of educating tribals by providing hostel 
facilities in various areas of Karnataka.

	� Anganwadi is a type of rural child care centre in India. They were started by the Indian government in 1975 as 
part of the Integrated Child Development Services program to combat child hunger and malnutrition.

	� Harohalli Industries Association: An Industrial association formed by group of people representing industries 
established in that area for the development of the area.

7. The reason for amount unspent during the Financial Year 2021-22 has been explained in the Board’s report.

The Company has started the project for construction of schools in underdeveloped areas of Ramanagar District 
(Kanakpura Taluq, Chickabalapur Taluq and Chellur Panchayat, in the year 2020-21. During the year, on account of 
the second wave of COVID-19 (Apr – June 2021) and the third wave of COVID-19 (Jan – Mar 2022), and also due to 
delay in receiving timely approvals because of changes in the officials of the concerned department the project 
implementation were impacted. However the same projects has been considered as ongoing projects and will be 
implemented from the unspent CSR Amount transferred to a dedicated account. In addition, the Company has been 
making contribution in the health care projects, environment welfare and rural and tribal development activities 
and is under the process to explore some more CSR projects which would meet the prospect of the CSR Policy. The 
Company is also in the process of finding suitable implementing agencies to circumvent non-expenditure of the 
deployed amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility in the upcoming years.

8. The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-						    

Ajay Bhardwaj				  

(Managing Director & Chairman, CSR Committee)

DIN: 00333704					   

 

	 Sd/-

Ravindra K. C.

	 (Director)

DIN: 01580534



STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Standalone)
To The Members of Anthem Biosciences Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Anthem Biosciences Private Limited 
which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at  31 March 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the  Standalone Ind AS 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS)” and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India,  of the Standalone State of Affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2022, and its  profit and the total comprehensive income, the cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the Ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and 
financial performance, of the company in accordance with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there no key audit matters to be reported for the 
Financial Year 2021-22. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

	� Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Independent Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c)	 The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
financial statements – Refer Note 38 to the standalone financial statements;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses. 

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund. 

iv.	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v.	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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vi.	 Based on the audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

vii.	 The company has neither declared nor paid interim dividend or final dividend except preference dividend 
during the year. Therefore, reporting under Rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not 
applicable. 

j.    With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, in our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for 
maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited company

For K.P.Rao & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 003135S

S/d

Mohan R Lavi

Partner

Membership No. 029340

UDIN: 22029340AVJDNA8965

Place: 	 Bangalore					   

Date:	 September 06, 2022
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

 (Referred to in report on other legal and regulatory requirements Section of our report of even date) 

i.	

a.	  

A.	 The company has maintained showing proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

B.	 the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during 
the year. 

c.	  Except for the property tabulated below, the title deeds of immovable properties held by the company are in 
the name of the Company. 

Description Gross Carrying 
Value (In Lakhs)

Held in name of Whether 
promoter/
director or 
their relative or 
employee

Period held Reason for not 
being in name of 
company

PPE 1313.21 The Karnataka 
Industrial Areas 
Development 
Board (KIADB)

No 17/05/2018 Lease cum sale 
basis (99 years 
lease)

PPE 367.15 The Karnataka 
Industrial Areas 
Development 
Board (KIADB)

No 26/09/2019 Lease cum sale 
basis (99 years 
lease)

PPE 4737.69 The Karnataka 
Industrial Areas 
Development 
Board (KIADB)

No 02/02/2021 Lease cum sale 
basis (99 years 
lease)

d.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets during 
the year.

e.	  According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
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ii.	

a.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the management, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; No 
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

b.	  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or 
statements filed by the Company with such banks are generally  in agreement with the books of account of 
the Company. Differences if any, are immaterial. 

iii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or 
any other parties during the year. The Company has granted advances to one of its subsidiary during the year, 
details of the advances are stated in sub-clause (a) below. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

a.	 A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has granted advances to its wholly-owned subsidiary (Neoanthem Lifesciences 
Private Limited)

Particulars Amount (In Lakhs)

Aggregate amount during the year 138.43
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 138.46

B.  Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the   information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has granted loan to a company other than subsidiary.

	� Particulars 	� Amount (In Lakhs)

Aggregate amount during the year Nil
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 724.62

b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by 
us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given are prima facie, not prejudicial to 
the interest of the Company.

c.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 
stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.

d.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given. 

e.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or 
fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same party.

f.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any 
terms or period of repayment.
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iv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given and investments made

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. 
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable

vi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
the Company is not required to maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii.	

a.	  The company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Cess and other 
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year.

b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or 
other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes, except for the 
following:

Nature of the statute Nature of the Dues Amount (In Lakhs) Period Forum where dispute is 
pending

The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 12.25 FY 2012 to FY 2015 CESTAT- Bangalore
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 92.91 AY 2017-18 CIT (A)- Bangalore

viii.	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income 
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix.	

a.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions.

b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis   of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender.

c.	  According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, term loans were applied for 
the purpose for which the loans were obtained 

d.	  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term 
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

e.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the company has 
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

f.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the company has 
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.
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x.	

a.	 The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b.	 Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has issued Equity shares during the year,  the requirements of section 
42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes 
for which the funds were raised,

xi.	

a.	  Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we 
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of 
the audit.

b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c.	 As represented to us by the Management, constituting whistle-blower policy is not required by the company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable 

xii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore the 
provisions of Para 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditors Report), 2020 are not applicable.

xiii.	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

xiv.	

a.	  The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

b.	 We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit.  

xv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order 
is not applicable.

xvi.	

a.	 The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b.	 The Company is not a Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities as defined in regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

c.	 The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly the provisions of Para 3(xvi)(c) is not applicable.

d.	 As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no Core Investment Companies as part of the 
Group. Accordingly the provisions of Para 3(xvi)(d) is not applicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.  

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is not 
applicable.
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xix.	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred the 
amount to be spent on CSR to a specific bank account.  

for K.P.Rao & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 003135S

Mohan R Lavi

Partner

Membership No. 029340 

UDIN: 22029340AVJDNA8965

Place:  	Bangalore				  

Date:	 September 06, 2022
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 

 As at March 
31,2022 

 As at March 
31,2021 

I ASSETS
1) Non-current assets

a) Property, plant and equipment 3  31,962.51  35,305.38 
b) Right to use assets (IND AS) 3.3  248.60  193.42 
c) Capital work-in-progress 3.1  15,267.62  1,858.53 
d) Other Intangible assets 3.2  689.89  641.82 
e) Financial Assets

i) Trade receivables 5  311.18  312.78 
ii) Loans & Advances 6  615.85  474.92 
iii) Other Financial Asset 7  432.08  353.11 

f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8  1,593.65  1,386.92 
g) Non-Current tax assets (net) 9  137.30  136.93 
h) Other non-current assets 10  950.89  1,128.98 

Total Non-current assets  52,209.58  41,792.80 
2) Current assets

a) Inventories 11  5,823.00  3,506.34 
b) Financial assets

i) Investment 4  27,297.93  20,927.34 
ii) Trade receivables 5  32,619.45  25,464.92 
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12  33,826.98  3,613.55 
iv) Bank balances, other than (iii) above 13  1,059.54  448.55 
v) Other Financial Asset 7  28.98  46.60 

c) Other current assets 14  9,052.08  7,573.35 
Total Current assets  1,09,707.96  61,580.65 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,61,917.54  1,03,373.44 

Standalone Financial Statements
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II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

a) Equity Share capital     15  877.63  848.46 
b) Other equity 16  1,34,668.60  69,298.93 

Total Equity  1,35,546.22  70,147.39 

Liabilities
1) Non-current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 19  113.20  123.09 
ii) Borrowings 17  589.84  1,972.14 
iii) Other financial liabilities 19  392.17  398.75 

b) Provisions 20  805.79  740.59 
c) Other non-current liabilities 21  2,165.31  1,503.78 

Total non-current liabilities  4,066.31  4,738.35 
2) Current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 19  117.22  113.02 
i) Borrowings 17  2,959.26  8,028.94 
ii) Trade Payables 18
 (a) �total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises & small 

enterprises
 15.98  39.93 

 (b) �total outstanding dues to other than Micro 
enterprises & small enterprises

 6,455.77  7,643.93 

iii) Other financial liabilities 19  236.24  62.61 
b) Provisions 20  0.12  0.12 
c) Other current liabilities 21  10,581.53  10,029.23 
d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 22  1,938.89  2,569.93 

Total current liabilities  22,305.01  28,487.70 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,61,917.54  1,03,373.44 

Corporate information and Significant accounting policies. 1&2

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
								      
For K.P. Rao & Co., 						      For and on behalf of the Board		
Chartered Accountants								      
Firm Registration No. 003135S								      
Mohan Lavi						      Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C
Partner							      Managing Director		  Director
Membership No.029340					    DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore					     Ramakrishnan K			 
Date  : September 06, 2022				    Company Secretary			 
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See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
								      
For K.P. Rao & Co., 						      For and on behalf of the Board		
Chartered Accountants								      
Firm Registration No. 003135S								      
Mohan Lavi						      Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C
Partner							      Managing Director		  Director
Membership No.029340					    DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore					     Ramakrishnan K			 
Date  : September 06, 2022				    Company Secretary			 

 Statement of Profit and Loss  for the period ending on March 31, 2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS
 Year Ended 

March 31,2022 
 Year Ended 

March 31,2021 
I Gross Revenue from Operations 23  123,125.60  110,324.03 
II Other income 24  4,898.05  3,720.91 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  128,023.66  114,044.94 
IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed & change in wip 25  41,029.77  40,788.22 
Change in Work in Progress 26  (137.35)  3,911.82 
Employee benefits expense 27  13,751.39  14,218.52 
Finance costs 28  1,008.54  1,696.63 
Depreciation and amortization expense 3  5,775.64  6,239.90 
Other expenses 29  11,936.45  10,631.93 
Total expenses (IV)  73,364.43  77,487.02 

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  54,659.23  36,557.92 
VI Exceptional items  -  - 
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI)  54,659.23  36,557.92 
VIII Tax expense 30

1) Current tax   14,238.89  9,669.93 
2) Deferred tax  (178.69)  (242.63)

 14,060.20  9,427.30 
IX Profit/(Loss) for the year( VII-VIII )  40,599.02  27,130.61 
X Other comprehensive income/(loss)
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 31

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (111.38)  (45.46)
Deferred Tax on above items  28.03  11.44 

b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 

XI
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 
(Comprising Profit(Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

 40,515.68  27,096.60 

XII Earnings per equity share: (In Rs.)
1) Basic  462.98  323.43 
2) Diluted  462.95  323.41 

Corporate information & significant accounting policies 1&2
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Description
Year Ended   March 

31,2022
Year Ended March 

31,2021
A. Cash Flow from operating activities:
Net Profit before taxation  54,547.85  36,512.45 
Adjustment:(+/-)
Depreciation/ Amortisation  5,783.45  6,247.71 
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment  65.20  (7.78)
Interest and Finance charges  1,008.54  1,696.63 
Interest from deposits & advances  (957.57)  (84.46)
Dividend/Capital Gain from Mutual Funds  (937.66)  (109.70)
Provision for Bad Debts  -  34.77 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of asset  16.46  11.09 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  59,526.26  44,300.72 
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Other financial Assets  (61.36)  (69.77)
Other Current Assets  (1,478.73)  (2,471.35)
Other non-current Assets  169.91  (759.61)
Current Financial Liabilites  173.63  1,029.39 
Trade and other receivables  (7,152.93)  (14,813.64)
Inventories  (2,316.66)  9,034.26 
Trade payables and other liabilities  (1,212.10)  247.23 
Other Current Liabilities  (2,013.44)  (1,642.71)
Provisions  -  (0.02)
Cash used in operations  45,634.58  34,854.50 
Income taxes paid  (12,300.00)  (7,100.00)
Net cash generated in Operating Activities  33,334.58  27,754.50 
B.  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets and other capital expenditure  (2,066.05)  (11,581.58)
Right to use assets-IND AS  (178.05)  116.98 
Sale of Fixed Assets  5.52  22.30 
(Increase)/Decrease in CWIP  (13,409.09)  3,122.34 
Purchase of Intangible Assets  (313.90)  (391.66)
Interest from deposits & advances  957.57  84.46 
Dividend/capital gain from Mutual Funds  937.66  109.70 
Investments in Mutual Fund and Equities  (6,370.60)  (11,061.22)
Receipt/(payment) of loans and advances to related party  (140.93)  (29.93)
Net cash used in Investing activities  (20,577.86)  (19,608.61)
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C. Cash flow from Financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares  24,749.97  759.42 
Repayment of Borrowings  (1,382.31)  (7,557.50)
Other Non-Current liabilities  645.07  470.07 
IND AS fair value adjustment  133.30  126.16 
Repayment of short term borrowings  (5,069.68)  1,572.09 
Interest and Finance charges  (1,008.54)  (1,696.63)
Preference dividend (inclusive of tax)  (0.12)  (0.12)
Net cash (Used)/ Generated in Financing Activities  18,067.70  (6,326.50)

Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  30,824.42  1,819.39 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (beginning of the year)  4,062.11  2,242.72 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (ending period)  34,886.52  4,062.11 

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
								      
For K.P. Rao & Co., 						      For and on behalf of the Board		
Chartered Accountants								      
Firm Registration No. 003135S								      
Mohan Lavi						      Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C
Partner							      Managing Director		  Director
Membership No.029340					    DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore					     Ramakrishnan K			 
Date  : September 06, 2022				    Company Secretary			 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A  - Equity Share Capital

Particulars

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars Number Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2021  8,484,581.00  848.46 

Add: Equity shares allotted during the year  291,673.00  29.17 

Balance as at March 31, 2022  8,776,254.00  877.63 

B  - Other Equity 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Items of other 

comprehensive 

income/(loss)

Equity 

Component 

of Compound 

Financial 

Instruments

Total
Capital 

Redemption 

Reserve

General 

Reserves

Securities 

Premium

Retained 

Earnings

Other items 

of Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Balance as at April 01, 2021  500.00  5,783.35  2,281.03  60,793.08  (222.77)  164.24  69,298.93 

Adjustment during the year  133.30  133.30 

Profit for the year  -  -  -  40,599.02  -  -  40,599.02 

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) 

for the year
 -  -  -  -  (83.34)  -  (83.34)

Dividends & Dividend tax paid  -  -  -  (0.12)  -  -  (0.12)

Additions during the year  -  4,059.90  24,720.80  (4,059.90)  -  -  24,720.80 

Balance as at March 31, 2022  500.00  9,843.25  27,001.83  97,465.38  (306.11)  164.24  134,668.60 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Items of other 
comprehensive 
income/(loss)

Equity 
Component 
of Compound 
Financial 
Instruments

Total
Capital 
Redemption 
Reserve

General 
Reserves

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

Other items 
of Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

Balance as at April 01, 2020  500.00  3,070.29  1,532.08  36,270.87  (188.75)  164.24  41,348.74 

Adjustment during the year  104.77  104.77 

Profit for the year  -  -  -  27,130.61  -  -  27,130.61 

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) 
for the year  -  -  -  -  (34.02)  -  (34.02)

Dividends & Dividend tax paid  -  -  -  (0.12)  -  -  (0.12)

Additions during the year  -  2,713.06  748.95  (2,713.06)  -  -  748.95 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  500.00  5,783.35  2,281.03  60,793.08  (222.77)  164.24  69,298.93 
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3.1 Capital work-in-progress (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Capital work-in-progress  15,267.62  1,858.53 

 15,267.62  1,858.53 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022

CWIP
 Amount in capital work in progress for a period of  

 Total(₹.in 
Lakhs)  Less than 1 

year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

Project work in progress  13,673.61  -  1,586.32  7.69  15,267.62 

Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  - 

3.2  Other Intangible assets (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Other Intangible Assets  689.89  641.82 

Total  689.89  641.82 

Particulars (₹.in Lakhs)

Cost or Deemed cost

As at April 01,  2021  1,504.68 

Additions during the year  313.90 

Disposals  - 

As at March 31, 2022  1,818.59 

Amortisation

As at April 01,  2021  862.87 

Charge for the period  265.83 

Disposals  - 

As at March 31, 2022  1,128.69 

Net block

As at March 31, 2022  689.89 

As at March 31, 2021  641.82 

3.3  Right to use assets (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  FY 21-22  FY 20-21 

Opening Balance  193.42  450.16 

Adjustment during the year  50.77  (211.48)

Deletions during the year  -  (37.40)

Additions during the year  127.28  131.90 

Depreciation during the year  (122.87)  (139.76)

Payment of lease liabilities  -  - 

Closing Balance  248.60  193.42 
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Anthem Biosciences Private Limited						    
Notes forming part of the  financial statements						    

15 Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

No.of Shares  (₹.in Lakhs) No.of Shares  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Authorised Share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each   2,50,00,000  2,500  2,50,00,000  2,500 

6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 10/- each  50,00,000  500  50,00,000  500 

0.05% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share of Rs.1000/-each  25,000  250  25,000  250 

 3,00,25,000  3,250  3,00,25,000  3,250 

Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each   87,76,254  878  84,84,581  848 

0.05% Compulosrily Convertible Preference Share of Rs.1000/-each  23,316  233  23,316  233 

Total  87,99,570  1,111  85,07,897  1,082 
						    
15.1 The Company has both equity & preference shares having a face value of Rs.10/- each.& Rs.1000/-each respectively.
15.2 Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares 
Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date of the shareholders meeting, is entitled to one vote 
in respect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholders meeting. The Company pays preference dividend in Indian 
rupees and remitted in foreign currency to overseas investor. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any 
of the remaining assets of the company after distribution of amounts payable to preference shareholders.  The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders					   
15.3 Dividend on preference shares					   
The amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to preference  shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended 
March 31, 2021 was Rs.11,658/- and Rs.11,658/-respectively. The Board of Directors at its meeting recommended a preference  dividend of Rs. 0.50 
/- per preference share.					   
15.4 The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 set out below:				  
	

Sl. 
No Name of the shareholder As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

No. of Shares held % holding No. of Shares held % holding

1 Mr. Ajay Bhardwaj (Equity shares of Rs.10/-each)  46,35,705 52.82%  46,80,000 55.85%

2 Mr. Ravindra K C (Equity shares of Rs.10/-each)  10,38,422 11.83%  11,79,442 14.07%

3 Mr. Ganesh S (Equity shares of Rs.10/-each)  10,70,242 12.19%  11,79,442 14.07%

4 Viridity Tone LLP  7,30,656 8.32%  -    -   

5   Portsmouth LLC (0.05% CCPS)  23,316 100%  23,316 100.00%
	
Shareholding of Promoters*					   
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year						    

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares** %of total shares** % Change During the year

1 Mr.Ajay Bhardwaj  46,35,705 52.82%  (0.95)

2 Mr. Ravindra K C  10,38,422 11.83%  (0.12)

3 Mr. Ganesh S  10,70,242 12.19%  (0.09)

Total  67,44,369 

16 Other Equity  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

a) Capital Redemption Reserve  500.00  500.00 

b) General Reserve  9,843.25  5,783.35 

c) Share Premium  27,001.83  2,281.03 

d) Retained Earnings  97,465.38  60,793.08 

e) Components of Other Comprehensive Income  (306.11)  (222.77)

f) Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments  164.24  164.24 

Balance at the end of the period (a+b+c+d+e+f)  1,34,668.60  69,298.93 

 Compound financial instrument						    
As per Ind AS 32, compound financial instruments need to be split into their debt and equity components from inception. The liability portion is 	
first computed and the balance is the equtiy portion. This has been computed for the .05% Compulsorily convertible preference shares
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(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

4.1 Trade - Quoted - at fair value

a) Investments in Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund  7,932.21  7,644.17 

Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund 
Growth  1,377.41  9,512.59 

ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund  -  1,007.70 

Nippon India Arbitrage- Growth  -  2,378.27 

Tata Arbitrage Fund  2,789.64  - 

ICICI Prudential Equity Arbitrage 
Fund-205-JB  2,072.54  - 

Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund-
Direct Growth-523-JB  2,076.37  - 

UTI-Arbitrage Fund-Direct 
Growth-914-JB  2,591.47  - 

HDFC Overnight Fund-JB  8,073.69  - 

Total investments at Fair Value  26,913.33  20,542.73 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

4.2 Other Investments

a) Investments in Subsidiary

Neo Anthem Life Sciences 
Private Limited  15.00  15.00 

b) Other Equity Investments

Investment in Four EF 
Renewables Private Limited  123.20  123.20 

c) Other Preference Investments

Investment in Four EF 
Renewables Private Limited  246.41  246.41 

Total investments at Fair Value  384.61  384.61 

Investment in Equity Instrument- wholly owned Subsidiary company
1. Investment in Neoanthem Life Sciences Private Limited, 1,50,000 equity shares 
of Rs. 10 each (FY2021: 150,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each), constitutes 100%  of 
the capital of that company 
Investment in Equity Instrument - Others				  
1. Investment in Four EF Renewables Private Limited, 123,203 equity shares of Rs. 
100 each (FY2021: 123,203 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each)

2. Investment in Four EF Renewables Private Limited, 246,406 Preference shares 
of Rs. 100 each (FY2021: 246,406 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each)			 
5 Trade Receivables				 
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b) Current

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Unsecured, considered good

(i) Trade Receivables  32,619.45  25,464.92 

Unsecured, considered doubtful

(i) Doubtful Debtors- Credit Impaired  -  232.13 

(ii) Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables  -  (232.13)

Total  32,619.45  25,464.92 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables from Related parties  311.18  312.78 

Total  311.18  312.78 

Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  -  0.40  -  -  310.78  311.18 

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(v) Disputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit 
risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  0.40  -  -  310.78  311.18 

Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  -    2.00  -    -    310.78  312.78 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    2.00  -    -    310.78  312.78 

a) Non-current				  
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Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  32,490.87  64.22  55.19  9.09  0.08  32,619.45 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  32,490.87  64.22  55.19  9.09  0.08  32,619.45 

Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  24,813.91  618.16  30.57  2.29  -    25,464.92 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    232.13  232.13 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  24,813.91  618.16  30.57  2.29  232.13  25,697.05 

ECL Model 					   
Ind AS 109 requires an impairment assessment to be made for Trade Receivables on an Expected Credit Loss Model. For Trade Receivables.		
Ind AS 109 permits a simplified approach of calculating only life time credit losses. 					   
Considering the industry in which the company is operating and the gestation period of its projects, impairment assessment is made annually for 
the entire block of Trade Receivables and impairment losses are recognised for trade receivables on a case to case basis.
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2 7 Other Financial Asset

a) Non- Current

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Un-secured Considered good

Staff advances  79.24  11.06 

Security Deposits  352.85  342.05 

Total  432.08  353.11 

b) Current

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Un-secured Considered good

Accrued interest  13.40  45.26 

Staff advances-Current  15.58  1.34 

Total  28.98  46.60 
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c) Fair Value Hierarchy

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Carrying value Fair value

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Amortised cost

(i) Loans  615.85  474.92  615.85  474.92 

(ii) Other Investments  384.61  384.61  384.61  384.61 

(iii) Trade Receivables  32,930.63  25,777.70  32,930.63  25,777.70 

(iv) Other Financial Assets  461.06  399.70  461.06  399.70 

(v) Cash and Cash Equivalents  34,886.52  4,062.10  34,886.52  4,062.10 

Fair Value through Profit and Loss

(i) Investments  26,913.33  20,542.73  26,913.33  20,542.73 

Total Financial Assets  96,191.99  51,641.77  96,191.99  51,641.77 

d) Fair Value Hierarchy

(₹.in Lakhs)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Mutual Fund Units 26,913.33 0.00 0.00 26,913.33

Investment in Wholly Owned Subsidiary 15.00 0.00 0.00 15.00

Other Investments 369.61 0.00 0.00 369.61

Total 27,297.93 0.00 0.00 27,297.93

8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets  1,386.92  1,154.24 

Add: Adjustments during the year  206.72  232.68 

Total  1,593.65  1,386.92 

8.1 Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of temporary differences are:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Deferred tax asset 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Expenditure disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961  805.79  740.59 

Prepaid rent written off  1.93  3.79 

Property, plant and equipment  5,082.34  4,067.50 

On OCI (Gratuity)  129.81  100.64 

Significant financing component  685.31  789.39 

Director’s Loan  -  87.23 

Deferred Loan finance cost  7.81  7.81 

Employee benefit expenses on staff loans  11.94  7.69 

Interest on BIRAC Loan  50.02  55.13 

Lease  145.72  - 

 6,920.66  5,859.77 
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Deferred tax liability
Interest income due to fair valuation of security deposits 2.01 3.97
Interest income recognised on Staff loan  13.46  17.08 
Notional interest income on loan to Associate company  6.23  6.14 
Actuarial gain/loss (OCI)  18.43  55.18 
Compound financial instruments  6.58  7.24 
BIRAC Loan grant recognised  23.78  23.77 
Lease  140.74  236.17 

 211.23  349.55 
Total  6,709.43  5,510.22 

9 Tax  Assets (Net)
(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Income Tax Refundable  137.30  136.93 

Total  137.30  136.93 
10 Other Non-current Assets

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Un-secured Considered good
(i) Capital advances  630.09  852.47 
(ii) Prepaid Rent  0.43  1.68 
(iii) Deferred Employees Benefit  7.04  14.92 
(iv) Deferred Loan - Anthem Biopharma Private Limited  242.20  250.01 
(v) Prepaid Expenses-long term  71.13  9.90 
Total  950.89  1,128.98 
11 Inventories

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(i) Raw materials  3,784.51  1,534.74 
(ii) Work in Progress  1,176.10  1,135.54 
(iii) Finished goods  455.36  358.57 
(iv) Goods in transit  407.03  477.50 
Total  5,823.00  3,506.34 
12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Balances with banks:
(i) in current accounts  509.34  3,476.90 
(ii) in deposit accounts  33,317.64  136.26 
Cash in Hand:
(i) Cash on hand  -  0.39 
Total  33,826.98  3,613.55 
13 Other Bank Balances

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Earmarked balances with Banks
(i) Margin Money & Other Deposits  712.63  48.40 
(ii) Debit balance in cash credit  346.90  400.15 
Total  1,059.54  448.55 
14 Other Current Assets

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Un-secured, Considered good
(i) Balances with other statutory authorities  7,900.97  7,029.22 
(ii) Prepaid Expenses  250.18  176.81 
(iii) Advances to Suppliers  181.99  177.90 
(iv) Export Incentives Receivable  718.93  188.94 
(v) Others Receivable  -  0.48 
Total  9,052.08  7,573.35 
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Break up of Loans- Borrowings with Repayment Terms

Loan Type Loan Name Repayment Terms
 Total Outstanding (₹.in Lakhs) 

(For Current 
Reporting period)

 ( the previous 
reporting period) 

Term Loan-Project HDFC Bank 22 Quarterly Instalments  -  1,598.65 

Term Loan-Project Citi Bank 46 Quarterly Instalments  -  2,023.59 

Term Loan-Project Canara Bank 23 Quarterly Instalments  -  3,262.39 

Term Loan-Project Biotechnology Industry 
Research Assistance Council 10 Years  697.30  799.73 

Working Capital Citi Bank Yearly Renewal  -  950.00 

Cash credit HDFC Bank Yearly Renewal  -  - 

Cash credit Citi Bank Yearly Renewal  1,010.01  - 

Cash credit Canara Bank Yearly Renewal  -  284.79 

PCFC Citi Bank Yearly Renewal  1,739.29  903.61 

Vehicle Loan HDFC Bank 60 EMI  2.08  19.91 

Vehicle Loan Kotak Bank 60 EMI  2.10  26.21 

Vehicle Loan Federal Bank 60 EMI  221.56  291.00 

Terms of Security							     
From Banks							     
17.1 Term loan from BIRAC (Biotechnology Industry Research Assistance Council), along with interest is secured by Equipment and Machinery 
which is procured from the sanctioned amount and carry an interest rate of 2.00% p.a (concessional rate)					   
	
17.2 Cash Credit and other fund and non fund facilities from Citibank; Canara Bank & HDFC Bank are secured by the first charge on pari-passu 
basis on all inventories and receivables, which is further secured by the personal guarantee of three Directors and  Demand promissory note and 
letter of continuity. These facilities are payable on demand and carry an interest rate (re-set) in the range of 7.55% to 8.50% p.a.			 
			 
17.3 Vehicle loans from banks have been hypothecatated on cars with a note on the registration certificate by way of endorsement in favour of 
respective lending banks.						    
 Terms of security and repayment 						    
a. Mortgage /charge over the company’s immovable and movable properties (other than project assets but including all receivables) both present 
and future;						    
b. Charge/assignment of revenues receivables 						    
c. Charge over /assignment of the rights, titles and interests of the company in to and in respect of all project agreements (in accordance with 
concession agreement).						    
d. Assignment of insurance policies, interest, benefits, claims, guarantees ,performance bonds and liquidated damages; 
e. The aforesaid charge will rank Pari - Passu with the mortgages and charges created/to be created in favour of participating institutions/banks.	
					   

 17.7 Obligations towards finance leases

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Minimum Lease payments

(i) Not later than one year  131.21  127.55 

(ii) Later than one year but not later than 
five years  127.42  142.03 

Total  258.63  269.58 

18 Trade Payables

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

(i) Dues to micro, small and medium 
enterprises  15.98  39.93 

(ii) Dues to others  5,593.45  6,056.35 

(iii) Other Creditors  862.32  1,587.58 

Total  6,471.76  7,683.86 
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Trade Payables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years  Total (₹.in Lakhs) 

MSME  15.98  -  -  -  15.98 

Others 6288.56 92.93 2.50 71.78  6,455.77 

Disputed dues - MSME  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed dues - Others  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  6,304.54  92.93  2.50  71.78  6,471.76 

Trade Payables Ageing

(For Previous Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years Total (₹.in Lakhs)

MSME  39.93  -  -  -  39.93 

Others 7451.81 25.87 85.31 80.95  7,643.93 

Disputed dues - MSME  -  -  -  -  - 

Disputed dues - Others  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  7,491.73  25.87  85.31  80.95  7,683.86 

19 Other Financial Liabilities

Non Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Lease Liability  113.20  123.09 

Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments  22.56  29.14 

Performance guarantee deposit  369.61  369.61 

Total  505.37  521.84 

Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Retention money  236.24  62.61 

Lease Liability  117.22  113.02 

Total  353.46  175.63 

Note -  During the year, the Company made a reassessment of its lease agreements in order to ascertain whether the agreements meet the 
definition of a lease. The net impact of these changes has been transferred to Retained Earnings.						    
			 

Fair Value Hierarchy

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars Carrying value as at Fair value as at

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Amortised cost

(i) Borrowings  3,549.09  10,001.08  3,549.09  10,001.08 

(ii) Trade Payables  6,471.76  7,683.86  6,471.76  7,683.86 

(iii) Other financial 
liabilities  858.83  697.47  858.83  697.47 

Total Financial Liabilities  10,879.68  18,382.41  10,879.68  18,382.41 
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20 Provisions

a) Non Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Provision for employee benefits

(i) Gratuity Payable  523.21  479.66 

(ii) Leave encashment  282.58  260.93 

Total  805.79  740.59 

(i) Movement in provisions

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

a) Provision for Gratuity

Opening Balance 479.66  490.84 

Additional Provisions made 132.55  88.87 

Provisions released ( paid) 89.00  100.05 

Closing Balance 523.21 479.66

b) Leave Encashment

Opening Balance 260.93  257.53 

Additional Provisions made 193.46  151.27 

Provisions released ( paid) 171.81  147.86 

Closing Balance 282.58 260.93

b) Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Dividend  0.12  0.12 

Total  0.12  0.12 

21 Other Liabilities

a) Non- Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Endo Global Biologicals - significant financing component  1,998.93  1,313.62 

Deferred Grant  166.38  190.16 

Total  2,165.31  1,503.78 

b) Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Other accrued liabilities  1,913.07  2,381.76 

Advances from customers  5,789.13  6,532.82 

Capital creditors  2,637.45  745.83 

Dues to statutory/government authorities  241.87  286.51 

Grants received in advance  -    82.32 

Total  10,581.53  10,029.23 

22 Current Tax Liability (Net)

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2021  31.03.2021 

Current

Income Tax Provision  14,238.89  9,669.93 

Less: Advance tax paid  12,300.00  7,100.00 

Total  1,938.89  2,569.93 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

23 Revenue From Operations

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Sale of products & services

Domestic sales  23,215.28  15,946.21 

Export sales  99,910.32  94,377.81 

Total  123,125.60  110,324.03 

23.1 Change in Contract Liabilities:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,313.62  524.23 

Add: Interest expense during the year  685.31  789.39 

Less: Invoices raised during the year  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,998.93  1,313.62 

Expected revenue recognition from remaining performance obligations

-within one year  1,998.93  - 

-more than one year  -  1,313.62 

23.2 Performance Obligation

In relation to information about company’s performance obligation, the entity satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time .

24 Other Income

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Interest from deposits & advances  957.57  84.46 

Other income  292.70  677.49 

Capital Gain and Dividend  937.66  184.27 

Fair value Gain-Mutual Fund  422.16  510.38 

Forex gain (net)  1,332.57  1,597.12 

Grant received  115.85  217.70 

MEIS Duty Credit Scripts  835.11  445.05 

Lease rent received  4.44  4.44 

Total  4,898.05  3,720.91 

25 Cost of materials consumed

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening stock  1,534.74  6,560.70 

Add: Chemicals and reagents  43,279.54  35,762.26 

 44,814.28  42,322.96 

Less: Closing stock  3,784.51  1,534.74 

Total  41,029.77  40,788.22 

26 Change in Work in Progress

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening stock

Finished goods  358.57  3,454.93 

Work-in-progress  1,135.54  1,951.00 

 1,494.11  5,405.93 

Less: Closing stock

Finished goods  455.36  358.57 

Work-in-progress  1,176.10  1,135.54 

Total  (137.35)  3,911.82 
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27 Employee Benefits Expense (₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Salaries and allowances  12,443.43  13,075.29 
Contribution to provident and other funds  646.83  589.27 
Staff welfare  649.19  546.27 
Employees Benefit Expense  11.94  7.69 
Total  13,751.39  14,218.52 
28 Finance Costs

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Interest Expense on 
(i) Interest - Term loans  182.84  648.37 
(ii) Interest - Cash credit  30.69  139.73 
(iii) Interest - Finance lease  23.53  26.13 
(iv) Interest - IND AS lease  22.86  16.60 
(v) Bank charges  62.80  115.10 
(vi) Interest on Endo Global-Significant Financing Component  685.31  623.01 
(vii) Interest on MSME  0.50  1.82 
(viii) Interest on unsecured loan  -  125.88 
Total  1,008.54  1,696.63 
29 Administrative Expenses

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Advertisement and business promotion  11.68  11.82 
Auditors’ remuneration  16.50  15.00 
Amortisation of deferred loan (ABPPL)  7.81  7.81 
Bad debts/Provision for doubtful debts  -  34.77 
Commission expenses  430.52  162.63 
Communication expenses  88.06  82.55 
Corporate social responsibility expenses  81.72  63.93 
Donation  7.50  4.50 
Freight and forwarding charges  531.60  604.31 
Health and safety expenses  377.73  375.29 
Insurance  299.99  265.03 
Interest on statutory dues  210.29  18.36 
Internal Audit Fees  5.50  6.50 
Legal and professional fees  101.31  575.88 
Loss from sale of assets  18.41  18.70 
Membership and subscription  70.43  54.38 
Miscellaneous expenses  18.52  145.89 
Fair value measurment expenses  51.28  687.87 
Pollution control expenses  338.88  120.03 
Power and fuel  3,631.87  3,422.52 
Printing and stationery  162.80  165.34 
Processing charges  390.54  404.71 
R & D expenses  2,478.80  688.73 
R & M - Building  43.32  81.64 
R & M - Others  590.20  505.35 
R & M - Plant and machinery  1,172.92  1,084.80 
Rates and taxes  488.22  784.05 
Rent  24.01  25.48 
Security charges  150.82  141.81 
Training and recruitment expenses  7.69  4.02 
Travelling and conveyance  127.52  68.23 
Total  11,936.45  10,631.93 
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29.1 As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net 
profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.

29 Auditor’s remuneration break-up

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

(i) Statutory audit fees  16.50  15.00 

(ii) Certification and other reimbursement  1.92  - 

(iii) Internal audit fees  5.50  6.50 

Total  23.92  21.50 

30 Tax Expense

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

A - Current Tax

Current tax on profits for the year  14,238.89  9,669.93 

Total  14,238.89  9,669.93 

30.1 Reconciliation of tax expenses to accounting profit                     

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars   31.03.2022   31.03.2021 

Accounting profit before tax  54,659.23  36,557.92 

Tax @ 25.168%  13,756.63  9,200.90 

Adjustments

Expenses that are disallowed as per Income Tax Act  4,260.35  6,968.98 

Expenses that are specifically allowed as per the Income Tax Act  (4,660.49)  (5,126.24)

Short term Capital gains  379.80  38.57 

Long term Capital gains  557.86  37.78 

Deduction under section 80JJA  (55.27)  (58.26)

Tax Expenses recognised  in the statement of profit and loss  14,238.89  11,061.73 

Income tax credit/(expense) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :  28.03  11.44 

Tax effect on actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit obligations  28.03  11.44 

31 Other comprehensive income 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

i) Actuarial gains & losses  (111.38)  (45.46)

ii) Deferred tax  28.03  11.44 

Total  (83.34)  (34.02)

32 Research and development expenditure	
Expenditure on research activities are recognized as expenses and charged to Statement of profit and loss. Development costs of products are 
also charged to the Statement of profit and loss unless a product’s technological feasibility has been established and the ability of the asset to 
generate future economic benefits, in such case expenditure is capitalized. The amount capitalized comprises expenditure that can be directly 
attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating, producing and making the asset ready for its intended use. Fixed assets 
utilized for research and development are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Tangible Assets and Intangible 
Assets. During the year, the below mentioned expenditure is incurred towards research and development:	 		

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Salaries and allowances  654.19  474.27 

Consumables  1,650.51  132.47 

Electricity expenses  64.66  65.11 

Other expenses  109.43  16.88 

Total expenses charged to statement of profit and loss  2,478.80  688.73 
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33 Earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Basic EPS Diluted EPS Basic EPS Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year  8,484,581  8,485,047  8,379,833  8,380,299 

Weighted no of equity shares issued during the 
year    284,481  284,481  32,142  32,142 

Weighted average number of equity shares for 
calculation of earnings per share  8,769,062  8,769,528  8,411,975  8,412,441 

34 Employee benefit expenses

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Salaries and Wages  12,443.43  13,075.29 

(ii) Contribution to provident and other funds  646.83  589.27 

(iii) Staff training and welfare expenses  649.19  546.27 

(iv) Employee benefit expenses  11.94  7.69 

Total  13,751.39  14,218.52 

*Includes contribution to defined contribution plan for the year ended March 31, 2022 Rs.326.00  lacs (for the year ended March 31, 2021:Rs.240.13 lacs)

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss in respect of gratuity and leave encashment cost

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave Encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Present value of projected benefit obligation  909.72  795.60  282.58  260.93 

(ii) Service cost  121.05  114.23  51.61  38.21 

(iii) Net interest on net defined liability/(asset)  29.94  29.80  12.04  12.41 

(iv) Re-measurement - actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in OCI  (18.43)  (55.18)  129.81  100.64 

Net present value of projected benefit obligation  1,042.28  884.45  476.04  412.20 

(i) Discount rate 7.39% 6.88% 7.39% 6.88%

(ii) Salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Change in projected benefit obligations

(i) Obligations at the beginning of the year  795.60  715.68  260.93  257.53 

(ii) Service cost  121.05  114.23  51.61  38.21 

(iii) Interest expense  53.27  47.47  12.04  12.41 

(iv) Benefits settled  (42.52)  (27.04)  (171.81)  (147.86)

(v) Actuarial (gain)/loss  (17.68)  (54.73)  129.81  100.64 

Obligations at end of the year  909.72  795.60  282.58  260.93 
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Bifurcation of present value of obligations at the end of the valuation period as per schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave Encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Current liabilities  203.30  159.84  94.89  81.05 

(ii) Non-Current liabilities  706.42  635.76  187.68  179.89 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Change in plan assets

(i) Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value  315.95  224.83  -  - 

(ii) Interest income on plan assets  23.34  17.67  -  - 

(iii) Re-measurement - actuarial gain/ (loss)  0.75  0.45  -  - 

(iv) Benefit payments from plan assets  (42.52)  (27.04)  -  - 

(v) Contributions from employers  89.00  100.03  171.81  147.86 

(vi) Benefits settled  -  (171.81)  (147.86)

Plan assets at the end of the year at fair value  386.51  315.95  -  - 

The experience adjustments, meaning difference between changes in plan assets and obligations expected on the basis of actuarial assumption 
and actual changes in those assets and obligations are as follows:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

(i) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities  2.01  (50.70)  132.10  101.24 

Percentage of opening plan liabilities 0.25% -7.08% 50.63% 39.31%

(ii) Experience adjustment on plan assets  0.75  0.45  -  - 

Percentage of opening plan assets 0.24% 0.20%  -  - 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Year 1  203.30  159.84  94.89  81.05 

Year 2  162.63  120.21  65.52  56.14 

Year 3  146.88  112.89  49.19  43.56 

Year 4  136.79  104.20  38.43  33.76 

Year 5  107.56  100.83  27.43  27.79 

Next 5 year Payouts  310.84  296.71  57.05  61.52 

The weighted average of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity is 4.5 as at 31 March 2022

The weighted average of the defined benefit obligation for leave encashment is 3.67 as at 31 March 2022
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35 Disclosure with respect to Ind AS 116 - Leases			 
Information about Leases Assets for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:			 

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “As at March 31, 2022” “As at March 31, 2021”

Balance as at beginning of the year 193.42 450.16

Additions 127.28 131.90

Adjustments during the year 50.77 -211.48

Deletions  -   -37.40

Depreciation* -122.87 -139.76

Balance as at end of the year 248.60 193.42

*The aggregate depreciation expense on Right-of-use assets is included under depreciation expense in Statement of Profit and Loss.	

The changes/movement in Lease Liabilities of the Company are as follows:

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “As at March 31, 2022” “As at March 31, 2021”

Balance as at beginning of the year 236.12 762.17

Additions 127.28 150.86

Adjustments during the year -15.08 -257.83

Deletions -298.78

Payment of lease liabilities -140.74 -136.90

Accreditation of interest 22.86 16.60

Balance as at end of the year 230.43 236.12

Current Liabilities 117.21 113.02

Non-Current Liabilities 113.21 123.09

Total cash outflow for leases  140.74  136.90 

The table below provides details regarding amounts recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss:

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “For the year ended March 31, 2022” “For the year ended March 31, 2021”

Expenses relating to short-term leases and/
or leases of low-value items

Interest on lease liabilities 22.86 16.60

Depreciation expense 122.87 139.76

Total 145.72 156.35

Contractual maturities of Lease Liabilities on undiscounted basis

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “As at March 31, 2022” “As at March 31, 2021”

Less than one year 131.21 127.55

One to five years 127.42 142.03

258.64 269.58

36 Financial Risk Management							     
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The 
Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial 
performance. The primary market risk to The Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate 
foreign exchange related risk exposures. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have 
the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is The Company’s policy that no trading in derivative for speculative purposes may be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:			 
				  
(a) “Credit risk: 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from The Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk arises from cash held 
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial 
assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other 
factors.”							     



Annual Report 202262

Financial Statements | Standalone Financial Statements

(b) “Trade and other receivables: 
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, 
including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.”		
(c ) “Investments: 
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit 
rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties, and does not have any significant concentration 
of exposures to specific industry sectors.”							     
(d) “Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity 
risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the Company has unutilized 
credit limits with banks. 
The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and 
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
The working capital position of the Company is given below:”	

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31,2022     As at March 31,2021

Cash & cash equivalents  33,826.98  3,613.55 

Investments in mutual funds (quoted)  26,913.33  20,927.34 

Contractual maturities of significant financials liabilities as at

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings  2,959.26  589.84  3,549.09 

Lease Liabilities  117.22  113.20  230.42 

Trade payables and accrued 
expenses  6,471.76  -    6,471.76 

Other Financial liabilities  236.24  392.17  628.41 

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings  8,028.94  1,972.14  10,001.08 

Lease Liabilities  113.02  123.09  236.11 

Trade payables and accrued 
expenses  7,683.86  -    7,683.86 

Other Financial liabilities  62.61  398.75  461.36 

(e ) “Foreign currency risk: 
The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in U.S. Dollars). A significant 
portion of The Company’s revenues are in US Dollars  while a significant portion of its costs are in Indian Rupees. As a result, if the value of the 
Indian Rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, The Company’s revenues measured in Rupees may decrease. The exchange rate 
between the Indian Rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially 
in the future. The Company has an internal committee which meets on a periodic basis to formulate the strategy for foreign currency risk 
management. When necessary, the Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, to mitigate the 
risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its forecasted cash flows and trade receivables.  “				  
(f) “Interest rate risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to The Company’s debt obligations with floating 
interest rates and investments. The Company’s borrowings and investments are primarily short-term, which do not expose it to significant interest 
rate risk.”							    
37 Capital Management Structure							     
“The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends on its equity shares. The Company’s 
objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value. 
The capital structure is as follows:”							     
The Company is predominantly equity financed which is evident from the capital structure table. Further, The Company has always been a net cash 
Group with cash and bank balances along with investment which is predominantly investment in liquid and short term mutual funds being far in 
excess of debt.							     
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39 Segment information : 							     
Segments are identified in line with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 “Operating Segments”, taking into consideration the internal 
organization and business activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it operates and separate financial information 
availability.							     
Company has identified two business segments viz,Contract Manufacturing;Development & Discovery Services and Speciality Ingredients (product 
business) during the year.Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which 
are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the basis of associated revenue. All other expenses which are not 
attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.				  

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021

Total equity attributable to the equity share holders of the group  1,35,546.22  70,147.39 

As percentage of the total capital 100% 100%

current loans & borrowings  2,959.26  8,028.94 

Non current loans & borrowings  589.84  1,972.14 

Total loans & borrowings  3,549.09  10,001.08 

As percentage of the total capital 2.62% 14%

Total capital (loans and borrowings and equity)  1,39,095.32  80,148.47 

38 Contingent Liabilities & Capital Commitments

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021

Commitments

Estimated amount of expected capital commitments  24,968  8,917 

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:

Income tax - AY 2015-16 - CIT Appeals 1, Bengaluru  326  326 

Income tax - AY 2017-18 - ITAT , Bengaluru  55  55 

Service Tax-Appeal-FY: 2011-2015  12  12 

Others:

Letter of credit  47  597 

Bank guarantees  70  70 

Corporate guarantees:

Guarantees given to Federal Bank on behalf of associate company for securing 
financial assistances in the form for working capital loan.  100  50 

  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31,2022 Year ended March 31,2021

Segmental Performance

Business Vertical:

Contract Manufacturing  1,10,233  99,643.59 

R&D Services  12,903  10,680.00 

Total  1,23,137  1,10,324 

Revenue wise

Export  99,950  94,346 

Domestic  23,186  15,977 

Total  1,23,137  1,10,324 

Geography wise sales

North America (USA)  51,771  56,387 

Europe  45,959  28,620 

India  23,186  15,977 

Rest of asia  1,431  8,682 

Others  789  657 

Total  1,23,137  1,10,324 
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Summarised segment information for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars CDMO Speciality Ingredients  Total(₹.in Lakhs) 

Revenue from operaions  94,721  28,404  1,23,126 

Allocated expenses  41,970  21,694  63,664 

Segment Result  52,751  6,711  59,462 

Total unallocable expenses  2,917 

Operating income  56,545 

Other income  4,898 

Profit before tax  54,659 

Tax expenses  14,060 

Profit for the year  40,599 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses (unallocable)  5,776 

40 Corporate Social Responsibility						    
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net 
profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. During the financial year 2021-22 the 
company has spent below amounts towards  rejuvenating bommasandra lake  work initiated by bommasandra industrial association; construction 
of anganwadi kendra at ramnagar ; contribution to Vanavasi Kalyan for education of tribal children and their hostel expenses;  contribution 
towards FNDR for research expenses for neglected diseases; etc. Apart from the amount spent company is also exploring some more CSR 
projects & also planning to  undertake various infrastructure facilities in the coming years.

As on March 31, 2022, a cumulative amount of Rs.450.86  lakhs is unspent. No provision towards the CSR expenditure has been made in the books 
of account.			 

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31,2022 Year ended March 31,2021

Gross amount required to be spent during the year  399.96  196.54 

Amount spent during the year  81.72  63.93 

Amount spent in local area  81.72  63.96 

Shortfall at the end of the year / period.  318.25  132.61 

Total of previous years shortfall.  450.86  132.61 

41 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure: (₹.in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Unhedged Hedged through forward or derivative Natural Hedge

</=1 year >1 year </=1 year >1 year </=1 year > 1 Year

FCY-Receivables (A)

Exports  20,439.91  -  530.65  -  - 

Loans to JV/WOS  -  -  -  -  - 

Others  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (A)  20,439.91  -  530.65  -  - 

FCY-Payables (B)

Imports  1,271.13  -  -  -  - 

Trade credits  -  -  -  -  - 

ECBs  -  -  -  -  - 

Other FCY loans  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (B)  1,271.13  -  -  -  - 

Total Exposure (A-B)/(B-A)  19,168.78  -  530.65  -  - 
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42 Trade Payables and Micro, Small and medium Enterprises

Trade Payables have been classified as Current and Non-Current. The Management has identified:

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year  15.98  39.93 

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting 
year  0.50  1.82 

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day  -    -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year  0.50  1.82 

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remanining unpaid at the end of the accounting 
year  2.32  1.82 

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such 
date when the interest dues as above actually paid  -    -   

43 Related Parties

Name of the related party Nature of relationship with the company Country  of  Incorporation/ Residential Status

Ajay Bhardwaj Managing Director Indian

Ravindra KC Whole time director Indian

Ganesh Sambasivam Whole time director Indian

Ramakrishnan K Company Secretary Indian

Ishaan Bhardwaj Manager-I Indian

Krithika Ganesh By.Manager-II Indian

Anthem Biopharma Pvt Ltd Associate India

Neoanthem Lifesciences Pvt Ltd Wholly Owned Subsidiary India

43.1 Transactions with above related parties 

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Name of the related party Nature of transaction
Year Ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Ishaan Bhardwaj Remuneration paid  28.60  38.70 

Krithika Ganesh Remuneration paid  5.07  -   

Anthem Biopharma Pvt Ltd

Sale of goods & services  -    0.29 

Purchase of goods & services  -    14.17 

Business support services  8.69  10.58 

Interest income (Interest charged 
on loans given to Biopharma)  51.38  50.59 

43.2 Balances receivable from  related parties are as follows

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Name of the related party Nature of transaction
Year Ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Anthem Biopharma Pvt Ltd

For sale of goods & services  310.78  310.78 

For rendering of services  0.40  2.00 

For loans and advances given  724.62  728.38 

Neoanthem Lifesciences Pvt Ltd For loans and advances given  138.46  0.03 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Name Designation
Remuneration paid for the Year ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Ajay Bhardwaj Managing Director  434.86  591.74 

Ravindra K C Whole Time Director  434.86  591.44 

Ganesh Sambasivam Whole Time Director  434.86  591.44 

Ramakrishnan K Company Secretary  64.65  320.43 
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45 Covid-19 Impact :			
Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the ongoing pandemic relating to COVID-19.In order to address the COVID-19 
related impact, company has taken several business continutiy measures to ensure minimum disruption with respect to prodcution, supply chain 
& logistics, procurments and employee health and saftey during the financial year.While the company has not experinced any significant difficulties 
with respect to market demand, liquidity,sourcing and capital expansion project,company has assessed the financial impact of the covid-19 
situation based on the internal and external  source of information available  and also company will continue to monitor any material changes to 
future economic  conditions.

 46 Key financial ratios

Figures for the current 
reporting period

Figures for the previous 
reporting period

Reason if the variance is more 
than 25%

1. Current Ratio  4.92  2.16  Reduction in borrowings 

2. Debt - Equity Ratio  0.03  0.14  Reduction in borrowings 

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio  7.66  8.67 NA

“4. Return on Equity Ratio  “  0.39  0.48 NA

5. Inventory turnover ratio  26.40  13.75 Due to increase in inventory 

6. Trade Receivables turnover ratio  4.24  6.13 Due to increase in receivable

7. Trade payables turnover ratio  6.11  5.99 NA

8. Net capital turnover ratio  2.04  4.53 Due to increase in current assets

9. Net profit ratio (Net Profit/Net Sales)  0.33  0.25 Improved margins

10. Return on Capital employed (EBIT/Capital Employed)  0.41  0.54 NA

47 Other Statutory Disclosures						    
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or						   
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.						   
(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:						    
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 						    
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.						    
(iii) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
Benami property.						    
(iv) No Relationship or Transactions with any struck off companies during the year.						    
(v) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.			 
(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.					   
(vii) The Company has not any such transaction which is  not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.						    
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Standalone Accounting Policies
1. Corporate information:

Anthem Biosciences Private Limited has been set up as a Life sciences/ Biotechnology based venture specialising in 
the manufacture of catalytic preparation, other organic compounds such as speciality organic molecules, biologically 
active peptides etc., which are high-value products used in drug, agrochemical and speciality chemicals industries. 
The Company has received the letter of permission under the 100% EOU scheme for manufacture of catalytic 
preparation and other organic compounds from the office of the Development Commissioner, CSEZ, sub office 
in Karnataka, vide letter No. 1/80/2006:PER:EOU:KR:CSEZ/106 dated 19th January 2007, which is further extended 
vide letter No : 1/80/2006:EOU:CSEZ/1276 dated 11th July 2022 valid till 10th July 2027 . In accordance with the said 
letter of permission, the facilities at the factory located at Bommasandra Industrial Area are with its best in class 
infrastructure which includes a modern c-GMP kilo lab and a versatile GMP pilot plant. Anthem Biosciences has the 
capacity to do GMP synthesis from milligram to kilogram and multi-kilogram scale. The projects results are initially 
transmitted by means of reports followed by the manufacture of small sample quantities that are sent to clients 
for testing purpose. The Company has received approval from Department of Scientific and Industrial Research 
Technology for in-house research and development activities, beginning 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2017 and further 
renewed  till 31.03.2024 vide approval letter No. :F.No.TU/IV-RD/2954/2021 dated 18th March 2021.

2. Significant accounting policies:

(A) Basis of preparation and presentation:

a) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the 
companies act, 2013. 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of 
relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date, March 31, 2022. These standalone financial 
statements were authorized for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on their meeting held on September 
06, 2022.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the 
following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

i.	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments);

ii.	 Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.

c) Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, 
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the notes. 
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d) Fair valuation:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or 
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing  transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and 
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as a net realisable value in Ind AS 
2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to 
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

	» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company 
can access at the measurement date;

	» Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly; and

	» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

(ii) Foreign currency transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functional currencies using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
and reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

(iii) Financial instruments:

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset(other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are 
included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place(regular way trade) are recognised on 
trade date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following 
categories: nonderivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL), 
non-derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL and derivative financial instruments (under the 
category of financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL. The classification of financial instruments depends on 
the objective of the business model for which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial 
instruments at initial recognition.
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(a) Non-derivative financial assets:

(i) Financial assets at amortized cost:

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a)	 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and

(b)	 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which 
are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss.

Amortized cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and 
other advances and eligible current and non-current assets. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and 
in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty on the 
principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand 
deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand, book overdraft and are 
considered part of the Company’s cash management system.

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition the Company may elect to 
designate the financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL if doing so 
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Financial assets included within the 
FVTPL category are measured at fair values with all changes in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Non-derivative financial liabilities:

(i) Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized at 
fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(B) Property, plant and equipment:

a) Recognition and measurement: 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

b) Depreciation:

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a written down value 
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired under finance lease and leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and lease term. The estimated useful lives of 
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
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Category Useful Life ( years)

Land 0
Roads 5-10 
Buildings 5-60
Plant and machinery 15-20
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fittings 10
Laboratory equipments 10
Office equipment 5
Pipelines 15
Computers and DP units 3-6
Motor vehicles 8

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. When parts of an 
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment 
is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial 
statements upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and 
the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital 
advances and capital work- in-progress respectively.

(C) Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized 
over their respective estimated useful lives on a written down value basis, from the date that they are available for 
use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects 
of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known 
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows 
from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category Useful Life
Software licenses Earlier of  license period or 1-3 years

(D) Leases:

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease 
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis 
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease 
components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term 
at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of- use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the 
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of 
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costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying 
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The 
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of 
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on 
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of- use assets are tested for impairment whenever 
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, if that 
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, The Company uses incremental borrowing 
rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise 
price of a purchase option where The Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of 
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. 
The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and re-measuring the carrying amount to 
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment 
to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the

measurement of the lease liability, The Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in 
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments 
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(E) Impairment:

(a) Financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss 
allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes 
in credit risk. 

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the company reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all 
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime 
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12-months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original 
effective interest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash flows, an company is required to consider:

(i)	 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life 
of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot 
be estimated reliably, then the company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial 
instrument.

(ii)	 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade 
receivable. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the 
trade receivable. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated. ECL impairment loss 
allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost, contractual revenue receivable. ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. 
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying 
amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross 
carrying amount.

(b) Non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset 
or a group of non-financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount 
of impairment loss. An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and 
recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the 
Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written 
off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
through profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater 
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are 
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

(F) Employee benefits:

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either 
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s only obligation 
is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets 
to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for 
defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a 
defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial 
and investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated using the 
projected unit credit method.

The Company has the following employee benefit plans:

a) Provident Fund: 

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged 
to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the employee renders the related service and the contributions 
to the government funds are due. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to provident 
fund authorities.

b) Gratuity:

For the purpose of administration of gratuity of the employees of the Company, the Company has established Anthem 
Biosciences Private Limited Employees Gratuity Trust. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the 
Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based 
on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity 
plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method.
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Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include 
an expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual 
return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined 
liability or asset through other comprehensive income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

c) Compensated absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of 
the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or 
termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the 
employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. 

The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. 
The Company recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation. Non-accumulating 
compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognizes actuarial 
gains and losses immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

(G) Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a 
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for 
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and 
the expected cost of terminating the contract.

(H) Revenue :

a) Sale of goods & services:

Company earns revenue primarily from sale of goods, providing scientific & technical consultancy services. Revenue 
is recognised when a promise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied by transferring 
control over the promised goods to the customer by delivery of goods for shipment as agreed with the customers. 

The amount of revenue to be recognised (transaction price) is based on the consideration expected to be received in 
exchange for goods, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales tax or other taxes directly 
linked to sales. If a contract contains more than one performance obligation, the transaction price is allocated to 
each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. 

Revenue from product sales are recorded net of allowances for estimated rebates, cash discounts and estimates of 
product returns, all of which are established at the time of sale. 

The company adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the effects of time value of money if the timing of 
payments agreed to by the parties to the contract provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the 
transfer of goods or services to the customer. The impact of the time value of money is shown as Contract Liability.
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b) Rental income:

Rental income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except 
where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. Lease incentives granted are 
recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

c) Dividend & interest income :

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using 
the effective interest method.

(I) Finance expense:

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the fair value of foreign 
exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit or loss.

(J) Income tax:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. 

 The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax 
asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date

(K) Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted 
as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are 
adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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(L) Research and development costs :

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and 
commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Company has an 
intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

(M) Government grants:

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

(i)	 the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and

(ii)	 the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over 
the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants 
are deducted in reporting the related expense. When loan or similar assistance is provided by government or related 
institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is 
recognized as government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at fair value and the 
government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds 
received.

(N) Inventories:

Inventories consists of (a) Raw materials, (b) Work-in-progress and (d) Finished goods. Inventories are carried at 
lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of raw materials is determined on a weighted average basis and/
specific cost wherever applicable. Cost of work in progress & finished goods produced includes direct material, 
labour cost and a proportion of manufacturing overheads.

(O) Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped or re-classified to conform to the present year’s presentation.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,2022, the ‘’MCA’’ amended 
the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below.

a.	 Ind AS 16-Property, Plant and Equipments:

b.	 Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;

c.	 Ind AS 103- Business Combination.

d.	 Ind AS 109-Financial Instruments.

e.	 Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

f.	  Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

These amendments are effective from April 01, 2022.The Company believes that the aforementioned amendments will 
not materially impact the financial statements of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Consolidated)
To The Members of Anthem Biosciences Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Anthem Biosciences Private 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary 
together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Consolidated statement of Cash Flows  for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, including  a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS)” and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India,  of the Consolidated State of Affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the 
Consolidated profit, the Consolidated total comprehensive income, Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated 
cash flows for the year ended.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the Ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act 2013, with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position and financial performance, of the group in accordance with the Accounting Principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective 
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Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

The respective Board of the companies included in the group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of each company.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there no key audit matters to be reported for the year 
2021-22. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

	¶ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

	¶ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities within the Group 
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other Company included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Independent Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on 
the matter  specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

h)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.. 

i)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

j)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of  Cash Flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

k)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

l)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st 
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis of written 
representations received by the management from directors of its subsidiary which are incorporated in India, 
as on 31 March 2022, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

m)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’

n)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum 
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited company.

o)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

viii.	The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on the 
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

ix.	 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

x.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

xi.	 The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received 
by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India from any persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall:
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	¶ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or

	¶ provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xii.	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

	¶ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	¶ provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xiii.	Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

xiv.	The Group has neither declared nor paid interim dividend or final dividend during the year. Therefore, 
reporting under Rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.  

For K.P.Rao & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 003135S

Mohan R Lavi

Partner

Membership No. 029340

UDIN:  22029340AVJCJN3959

Place: Bangalore				  

Date:	 September 06, 2022
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(Referred to in report on other legal and regulatory requirements Section of our report of even date) 

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company.

for K.P.Rao & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 003135S

Mohan R Lavi

Partner

Membership No. 029340 

UDIN: 22029340AVJCJN3959

Place: Bangalore				  

Date:	 September 06, 2022                            

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report On The Consolidated Financial Statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Anthem Biosciences Private Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and such 
companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, the holding company and such Companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary company, 
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note of Internal Financial Controls With reference to consolidated financial statements issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. However, the existing policies, systems, procedures and internal 
controls followed by the Holding Company have to be completely and appropriately documented.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls With reference to consolidated financial statements (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s  policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). 
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Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards 
on Auditing (‘the Standards’), issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting in the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. This 
includes those policies and procedures that:

i)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

ii)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and

iii)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For K.P.Rao & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 003135S

Mohan R Lavi

Partner

Membership No. 029340

UDIN: 22029340AVJCJN3959

Place: Bangalore				  

Date:	 September 06, 2022
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 

 As at March 
31,2022 

 As at March 
31,2021 

I ASSETS
1) Non-current assets

a) Property, plant and equipment 3  31,962.51  35,305.38 
b) Right to use assets (IND AS) 3.3  248.60  193.42 
c) Capital work-in-progress 3.1  15,382.94  1,867.97 
d) Other Intangible assets 3.2  689.89  641.82 
e) Financial Assets

i) Trade receivables 5  311.18  312.78 
ii) Loans & Advances 6  477.39  474.92 
iii) Other Financial Asset 7  432.08  353.11 

f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8  1,593.78  1,386.99 
g) Non-Current tax assets (net) 9  137.30  136.93 
h) Other non-current assets 10  950.89  1,128.98 

Total Non-current assets  52,186.56  41,802.30 
2) Current assets

a) Inventories 11  5,823.00  3,506.34 
b) Financial assets

i) Investment 4  27,282.93  20,912.34 
ii) Trade receivables 5  32,619.45  25,464.92 
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12  33,830.75  3,628.15 
iv) Bank balances, other than (iii) above 13  1,059.54  448.55 
v) Other Financial Asset 7  28.98  46.60 

c) Other current assets 14  9,055.49  7,573.41 
Total Current assets  1,09,700.14  61,580.30 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,61,886.70  1,03,382.61 

Consolidated Financial Statements
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II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

a) Equity Share capital     15  877.63  848.46 
b) Other equity 16  1,34,622.24  69,297.65 

Total Equity  1,35,499.87  70,146.11 

Liabilities
1) Non-current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 19  113.20  123.09 
ii) Borrowings 17  589.84  1,972.14 
iii) Other financial liabilities 19  392.17  398.75 

b) Provisions 20  805.79  740.59 
c) Other non-current liabilities 21  2,165.31  1,503.78 

Total non-current liabilities  4,066.31  4,738.35 
2) Current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 19  117.22  113.02 
i) Borrowings 17  2,959.26  8,028.94 
ii) Trade Payables 18  -   
 (a) �total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises & small 

enterprises
 15.98  39.93 

 (b) �total outstanding dues to other than Micro 
enterprises & small enterprises

 6,468.14  7,652.57 

iii) Other financial liabilities 19  236.24  62.61 
b) Provisions 20  0.12  0.12 
c) Other current liabilities 21  10,584.68  10,031.03 
d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 22  1,938.89  2,569.93 

Total current liabilities  22,320.52  28,498.14 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,61,886.70  1,03,382.61 

Corporate information and Significant accounting policies. 1&2

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
								      
For K.P. Rao & Co., 						      For and on behalf of the Board		
Chartered Accountants								      
Firm Registration No. 003135S								      
Mohan Lavi						      Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C
Partner							      Managing Director		  Director
Membership No.029340					    DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore					     Ramakrishnan K			 
Date  : September 06, 2022				    Company Secretary			 
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See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
								      
For K.P. Rao & Co., 						      For and on behalf of the Board		
Chartered Accountants								      
Firm Registration No. 003135S								      
Mohan Lavi						      Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C
Partner							      Managing Director		  Director
Membership No.029340					    DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore					     Ramakrishnan K			 
Date  : September 06, 2022				    Company Secretary			 

 Consolidated  Statement of Profit and Loss  for the period ending on March 31,2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS
 Year Ended 

March 31,2022 
 Year Ended 

March 31,2021 
I Gross Revenue from Operations 23  1,23,125.60  1,10,324.03 
II Other income 24  4,898.05  3,720.91 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  1,28,023.66  1,14,044.94 
IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed & change in wip 25  41,029.77  40,788.22 
Change in Work in Progress 26  (137.35)  3,911.82 
Employee benefits expense 27  13,751.39  14,218.52 
Finance costs 28  1,008.63  1,696.63 
Depreciation and amortization expense 3  5,775.64  6,239.90 
Other expenses 29  11,981.50  10,633.27 
Total expenses (IV)  73,409.57  77,488.36 

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  54,614.09  36,556.57 
VI Exceptional items  -    -   
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI)  54,614.09  36,556.57 
VIII Tax expense 30

1) Current tax   14,238.89  9,669.93 
2) Deferred tax  (178.76)  (242.70)

 14,060.14  9,427.23 
IX Profit/(Loss) for the year( VII-VIII )  40,553.95  27,129.34 
X Other comprehensive income/(loss)
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 31

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (111.38)  (45.46)
Deferred Tax on above items  28.03  11.44 

b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   

XI
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 
(Comprising Profit(Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

 40,470.61  27,095.32 

XII Earnings per equity share: (In Rs.)
1) Basic  462.46  323.43 
2) Diluted  462.44  323.41 

Corporate information & significant accounting policies 1&2
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Description
Year Ended   March 

31,2022
Year Ended March 

31,2021
A. Cash Flow from operating activities:
Net Profit before taxation  54,502.71  36,511.11 
Adjustment:(+/-)
Depreciation/ Amortisation  5,783.45  6,247.71 
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment  65.20  (7.78)
Interest and Finance charges  1,008.63  1,696.63 
Interest from deposits & advances  (957.57)  (84.46)
Dividend/Capital Gain from Mutual Funds  (937.66)  (109.70)
Provision for Bad Debts  -    34.77 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of asset  16.46  11.09 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  59,481.21  44,299.37 
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Other financial Assets  (61.36)  (69.77)
Other Current Assets  (1,482.08)  (2,471.41)
Other non-current Assets  169.91  (759.61)
Current Financial Liabilites  173.63  1,038.03 
Trade and other receivables  (7,152.93)  (14,813.64)
Inventories  (2,316.66)  9,034.26 
Trade payables and other liabilities  (1,208.38)  247.23 
Other Current Liabilities  (2,012.09)  (1,640.91)
Provisions  -    (0.02)
Cash used in operations  45,591.26  34,863.53 
Income taxes paid  (12,300.00)  (7,100.00)
Net cash generated in Operating Activities  33,291.26  27,763.53 
B.  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets and other capital expenditure  (2,066.05)  (11,581.58)
Right to use assets-IND AS  (178.05)  116.98 
Sale of Fixed Assets  5.52  22.30 
(Increase)/Decrease in CWIP  (13,514.96)  3,112.90 
Purchase of Intangible Assets  (313.90)  (391.66)
Interest from deposits & advances  957.57  84.46 
Dividend/capital gain from Mutual Funds  937.66  109.70 
Investments in Mutual Fund and Equities  (6,370.60)  (11,046.22)
Receipt/(payment) of loans and advances to related party  (2.47)  (29.93)
Net cash used in Investing activities  (20,545.27)  (19,603.05)
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C. Cash flow from Financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares  24,749.97  759.42 
Repayment of Borrowings  (1,382.31)  (7,557.50)
Other Non-Current liabilities  645.07  470.07 
IND AS fair value adjustment  133.30  126.16 
Repayment of short term borrowings  (5,069.68)  1,572.09 
Interest and Finance charges  (1,008.63)  (1,696.63)
Preference dividend (inclusive of tax)  (0.12)  (0.12)
Net cash (Used)/ Generated in Financing Activities  18,067.60  (6,326.51)

Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  30,813.59  1,833.98 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (beginning of the year)  4,076.70  2,242.72 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (ending period)  34,890.28  4,076.70 

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
								      
For K.P. Rao & Co., 						      For and on behalf of the Board		
Chartered Accountants								      
Firm Registration No. 003135S								      
Mohan Lavi						      Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C
Partner							      Managing Director		  Director
Membership No.029340					    DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore					     Ramakrishnan K			 
Date  : September 06, 2022				    Company Secretary			 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A  - Equity Share Capital

Particulars

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars Number Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2021  84,84,581.00  848.46 

Add: Equity shares allotted during the year  2,91,673.00  29.17 

Balance as at March 31, 2022  87,76,254.00  877.63 

B  - Other Equity 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Items of other 

comprehensive 

income/(loss)

Equity 

Component 

of Compound 

Financial 

Instruments

Total
Capital 

Redemption 

Reserve

General 

Reserves

Securities 

Premium

Retained 

Earnings

Other items 

of Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Balance as at April 01, 2021  500.00  5,783.22  2,281.03  60,791.93  (222.77)  164.24  69,297.65 

Adjustment during the year  133.30  133.30 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    40,553.95  -    -    40,553.95 

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) 

for the year
 -    -    -    -    (83.34)  -    (83.34)

Dividends & Dividend tax paid  -    -    -    (0.12)  -    -    (0.12)

Additions during the year  -    4,055.39  24,720.80  (4,055.39)  -    -    24,720.80 

Balance as at March 31, 2022  500.00  9,838.61  27,001.83  97,423.67  (306.11)  164.24  1,34,622.24 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Items of other 
comprehensive 
income/(loss)

Equity 
Component 
of Compound 
Financial 
Instruments

Total
Capital 
Redemption 
Reserve

General 
Reserves

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

Other items 
of Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

Balance as at April 01, 2020  500.00  3,070.29  1,532.08  36,270.87  (188.75)  164.24  41,348.74 

Adjustment during the year  104.77  104.77 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    27,129.34  -    -    27,129.34 

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) 
for the year  -    -    -    -    (34.02)  -    (34.02)

Dividends & Dividend tax paid  -    -    -    (0.12)  -    -    (0.12)

Additions during the year  -    2,712.93  748.95  (2,712.93)  -    -    748.95 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  500.00  5,783.22  2,281.03  60,791.93  (222.77)  164.24  69,297.65 
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3.1 Capital work-in-progress (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Capital work-in-progress  15,382.94  1,867.97 

 15,382.94  1,867.97 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022

CWIP
 Amount in capital work in progress for a period of  

 Total(₹.in 
Lakhs)  Less than 1 

year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

Project work in progress  13,779.48  9.44  1,586.32  7.69  15,382.94 

Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31 March 2022

CWIP
 Amount in capital work in progress for a period of  

 Total(₹.in 
Lakhs)  Less than 1 

year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

Project work in progress  751.18  1,099.80  -    16.99  1,867.97 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

3.2  Other Intangible assets (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Other Intangible Assets  689.89  641.82 

Total  689.89  641.82 

Particulars (₹.in Lakhs)

Cost or Deemed cost

As at April 01,  2021  1,504.68 

Additions during the year  313.90 

Disposals  -   

As at March 31, 2022  1,818.59 

Amortisation

As at April 01,  2021  862.87 

Charge for the period  265.83 

Disposals  -   

As at March 31, 2022  1,128.69 

Net block

As at March 31, 2022  689.89 

As at March 31, 2021  641.82 

3.3  Right to use assets (₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  FY 21-22  FY 20-21 

Opening Balance  193.415  450.155 

Adjustment during the year  50.770  (211.476)

Deletions during the year  -    (37.403)

Additions during the year  127.281  131.895 

Depreciation during the year  (122.865)  (139.756)

Payment of lease liabilities  -    -   

Closing Balance  248.601  193.415 



Annual Report 2022 91

Financial Statements | Consolidated Financial Statements

Anthem Biosciences Private Limited						    
Notes forming part of the  financial statements						    

15 Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

No.of Shares  (₹.in Lakhs) No.of Shares  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Authorised Share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each   2,50,00,000  2,500  2,50,00,000  2,500 

6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 10/- each  50,00,000  500  50,00,000  500 

0.05% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share of Rs.1000/-each  25,000  250  25,000  250 

 3,00,25,000  3,250  3,00,25,000  3,250 

Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each   87,76,254  878  84,84,581  848 

0.05% Compulosrily Convertible Preference Share of Rs.1000/-each  23,316  233  23,316  233 

Total  87,99,570  1,111  85,07,897  1,082 
						    
15.1 The Company has both equity & preference shares having a face value of Rs.10/- each.& Rs.1000/-each respectively.
15.2 Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares 
Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date of the shareholders meeting, is entitled to one vote 
in respect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholders meeting. The Company pays preference dividend in Indian 
rupees and remitted in foreign currency to overseas investor. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any 
of the remaining assets of the company after distribution of amounts payable to preference shareholders.  The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders					   
15.3 Dividend on preference shares					   
The amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to preference  shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended 
March 31, 2021 was Rs.11,658/- and Rs.11,658/-respectively. The Board of Directors at its meeting recommended a preference  dividend of Rs. 0.50 
/- per preference share.					   
15.4 The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 set out below:				  
	

Sl. 
No Name of the shareholder As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

No. of Shares held % holding No. of Shares held % holding

1 Mr. Ajay Bhardwaj (Equity shares of Rs.10/-each)  46,35,705 52.82%  46,80,000 55.85%

2 Mr. Ravindra K C (Equity shares of Rs.10/-each)  10,38,422 11.83%  11,79,442 14.07%

3 Mr. Ganesh S (Equity shares of Rs.10/-each)  10,70,242 12.19%  11,79,442 14.07%

4 Viridity Tone LLP  7,30,656 8.32%  -    -   

5   Portsmouth LLC (0.05% CCPS)  23,316 100%  23,316 100.00%
	
Shareholding of Promoters*					   
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year						    

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares** %of total shares** % Change During the year

1 Mr.Ajay Bhardwaj  46,35,705 52.82%  (0.95)

2 Mr. Ravindra K C  10,38,422 11.83%  (0.12)

3 Mr. Ganesh S  10,70,242 12.19%  (0.09)

Total  67,44,369 

16 Other Equity  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

a) Capital Redemption Reserve  500.00  500.00 

b) General Reserve  9,838.61  5,783.22 

c) Share Premium  27,001.83  2,281.03 

d) Retained Earnings  97,423.67  60,791.93 

e) Components of Other Comprehensive Income  (306.11)  (222.77)

f) Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments  164.24  164.24 

Balance at the end of the period (a+b+c+d+e+f)  1,34,622.24  69,297.65 

 Compound financial instrument						    
As per Ind AS 32, compound financial instruments need to be split into their debt and equity components from inception. The liability portion is 	
first computed and the balance is the equtiy portion. This has been computed for the .05% Compulsorily convertible preference shares
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(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

4.1 Trade - Quoted - at fair value

a) Investments in Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund  7,932.21  7,644.17 

Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund 
Growth  1,377.41  9,512.59 

ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund  -    1,007.70 

Nippon India Arbitrage- Growth  -    2,378.27 

Tata Arbitrage Fund  2,789.64  -   

ICICI Prudential Equity Arbitrage 
Fund-205-JB  2,072.54  -   

Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund-
Direct Growth-523-JB  2,076.37  -   

UTI-Arbitrage Fund-Direct 
Growth-914-JB  2,591.47  -   

HDFC Overnight Fund-JB  8,073.69  -   

Total investments at Fair Value  26,913.33  20,542.73 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

4.2 Other Investments

a) Other Equity Investments

Investment in Four EF 
Renewables Private Limited  123.20  123.20 

b) Other Preference Investments

Investment in Four EF 
Renewables Private Limited  246.41  246.41 

Total investments at Fair Value  369.61  369.61 

Investment in Equity Instrument- wholly owned Subsidiary company
1. Investment in Neoanthem Life Sciences Private Limited, 1,50,000 equity shares 
of Rs. 10 each (FY2021: 150,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each), constitutes 100%  of 
the capital of that company 
Investment in Equity Instrument - Others				  
1. Investment in Four EF Renewables Private Limited, 123,203 equity shares of Rs. 
100 each (FY2021: 123,203 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each)

2. Investment in Four EF Renewables Private Limited, 246,406 Preference shares 
of Rs. 100 each (FY2021: 246,406 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each)			 
5 Trade Receivables				 

a) Non-current				  
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b) Current

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Unsecured, considered good

(i) Trade Receivables  32,619.45  25,464.92 

Unsecured, considered doubtful

(i) Doubtful Debtors- Credit Impaired  -  232.13 

(ii) Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables  -  (232.13)

Total  32,619.45  25,464.92 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables from Related parties  311.18  312.78 

Total  311.18  312.78 

Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  -  0.40  -  -  310.78  311.18 

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(v) Disputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit 
risk

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  0.40  -  -  310.78  311.18 

Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  -    2.00  -    -    310.78  312.78 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    2.00  -    -    310.78  312.78 
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Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  32,490.87  64.22  55.19  9.09  0.08  32,619.45 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  32,490.87  64.22  55.19  9.09  0.08  32,619.45 

Trade Receivables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
 Total (₹.in 

Lakhs) 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – considered good  24,813.91  618.16  30.57  2.29  -    25,464.92 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed  Trade 
receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    232.13  232.13 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables– considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  24,813.91  618.16  30.57  2.29  232.13  25,697.05 

ECL Model 					   
Ind AS 109 requires an impairment assessment to be made for Trade Receivables on an Expected Credit Loss Model. For Trade Receivables.		
Ind AS 109 permits a simplified approach of calculating only life time credit losses. 					   
Considering the industry in which the company is operating and the gestation period of its projects, impairment assessment is made annually for 
the entire block of Trade Receivables and impairment losses are recognised for trade receivables on a case to case basis.
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7 Other Financial Asset

a) Non- Current

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Un-secured Considered good

Staff advances  79.24  11.06 

Security Deposits  352.85  342.05 

Total  432.08  353.11 

b) Current

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Un-secured Considered good

Accrued interest  13.40  45.26 

Staff advances-Current  15.58  1.34 

Total  28.98  46.60 
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c) Fair Value Hierarchy

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Carrying value Fair value

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Amortised cost

(i) Loans  477.39  474.92  477.39  474.92 

(ii) Other Investments  369.61  369.61  369.61  369.61 

(iii) Trade Receivables  32,930.63  25,777.70  32,930.63  25,777.70 

(iv) Other Financial Assets  461.06  399.70  461.06  399.70 

(v) Cash and Cash Equivalents  34,890.28  4,076.70  34,890.28  4,076.70 

Fair Value through Profit and Loss

(i) Investments  26,913.33  20,542.73  26,913.33  20,542.73 

Total Financial Assets  96,042.30  51,641.36  96,042.30  51,641.36 

d) Fair Value Hierarchy

(₹.in Lakhs)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Mutual Fund Units 26,913.33 0.00 0.00 26,913.33

Investment in Wholly Owned Subsidiary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Investments 369.61 0.00 0.00 369.61

Total 27,282.93 0.00 0.00 27,282.93

8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets  1,386.99  1,154.24 

Add: Adjustments during the year  206.79  232.75 

Total  1,593.78  1,386.99 

8.1 Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of temporary differences are:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Deferred tax asset 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Expenditure disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961  805.79  740.59 

Prepaid rent written off  1.93  3.79 

Property, plant and equipment  5,082.34  4,067.50 

On OCI (Gratuity)  129.81  100.64 

Significant financing component  685.31  789.39 

Director’s Loan  -    87.23 

Deferred Loan finance cost  8.14  7.81 

Employee benefit expenses on staff loans  11.94  7.69 

Interest on BIRAC Loan  50.02  55.13 

Lease  145.72  -   

 6,921.00  5,859.77 



Annual Report 2022 97

Financial Statements | Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax liability
Interest income due to fair valuation of security deposits 2.01 3.97
Interest income recognised on Staff loan  13.46  17.08 
Notional interest income on loan to Associate company  6.23  6.14 
Actuarial gain/loss (OCI)  18.43  55.18 
Compound financial instruments  6.58  7.24 
BIRAC Loan grant recognised  23.78  23.77 
Lease  140.74  236.17 

 211.23  349.55 
Total  6,709.77  5,510.22 

9 Tax  Assets (Net)
(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Income Tax Refundable  137.30  136.93 

Total  137.30  136.93 
10 Other Non-current Assets

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Un-secured Considered good
(i) Capital advances  630.09  852.47 
(ii) Prepaid Rent  0.43  1.68 
(iii) Deferred Employees Benefit  7.04  14.92 
(iv) Deferred Loan - Anthem Biopharma Private Limited  242.20  250.01 
(v) Prepaid Expenses-long term  71.13  9.90 
Total  950.89  1,128.98 
11 Inventories

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(i) Raw materials  3,784.51  1,534.74 
(ii) Work in Progress  1,176.10  1,135.54 
(iii) Finished goods  455.36  358.57 
(iv) Goods in transit  407.03  477.50 
Total  5,823.00  3,506.34 
12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Balances with banks:
(i) in current accounts  513.10  3,491.50 
(ii) in deposit accounts  33,317.64  136.26 
Cash in Hand:
(i) Cash on hand  -    0.39 
Total  33,830.75  3,628.15 
13 Other Bank Balances

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Earmarked balances with Banks
(i) Margin Money & Other Deposits  712.63  48.40 
(ii) Debit balance in cash credit  346.90  400.15 
Total  1,059.54  448.55 
14 Other Current Assets

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Un-secured, Considered good
(i) Balances with other statutory authorities  7,904.18  7,029.28 
(ii) Prepaid Expenses  250.38  176.81 
(iii) Advances to Suppliers  181.99  177.90 
(iv) Export Incentives Receivable  718.93  188.94 
(v) Others Receivable  -    0.48 
Total  9,055.49  7,573.41 
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Break up of Loans- Borrowings with Repayment Terms

Loan Type Loan Name Repayment Terms
 Total Outstanding (₹.in Lakhs) 

(For Current 
Reporting period)

 ( the previous 
reporting period) 

Term Loan-Project HDFC Bank 22 Quarterly Instalments  -    1,598.65 

Term Loan-Project Citi Bank 46 Quarterly Instalments  -    2,023.59 

Term Loan-Project Canara Bank 23 Quarterly Instalments  -    3,262.39 

Term Loan-Project Biotechnology Industry 
Research Assistance Council 10 Years  697.30  799.73 

Working Capital Citi Bank Yearly Renewal  -    950.00 

Cash credit Citi Bank Yearly Renewal  1,010.01  -   

Cash credit Canara Bank Yearly Renewal  -    284.79 

PCFC Citi Bank Yearly Renewal  1,739.29  903.61 

Vehicle Loan HDFC Bank 60 EMI  2.08  19.91 

Vehicle Loan Kotak Bank 60 EMI  2.10  26.21 

Vehicle Loan Federal Bank 60 EMI  221.56  291.00 

Terms of Security							     
From Banks							     
17.1 Term loan from BIRAC (Biotechnology Industry Research Assistance Council), along with interest is secured by Equipment and Machinery 
which is procured from the sanctioned amount and carry an interest rate of 2.00% p.a (concessional rate)					   
	
17.2 Cash Credit and other fund and non fund facilities from Citibank; Canara Bank & HDFC Bank are secured by the first charge on pari-passu 
basis on all inventories and receivables, which is further secured by the personal guarantee of three Directors and  Demand promissory note and 
letter of continuity. These facilities are payable on demand and carry an interest rate (re-set) in the range of 7.55% to 8.50% p.a.			 
			 
17.3 Vehicle loans from banks have been hypothecatated on cars with a note on the registration certificate by way of endorsement in favour of 
respective lending banks.						    
 Terms of security and repayment 						    
a. Mortgage /charge over the company’s immovable and movable properties (other than project assets but including all receivables) both present 
and future;						    
b. Charge/assignment of revenues receivables 						    
c. Charge over /assignment of the rights, titles and interests of the company in to and in respect of all project agreements (in accordance with 
concession agreement).						    
d. Assignment of insurance policies, interest, benefits, claims, guarantees ,performance bonds and liquidated damages; 
e. The aforesaid charge will rank Pari - Passu with the mortgages and charges created/to be created in favour of participating institutions/banks.	
					   

 17.7 Obligations towards finance leases

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Minimum Lease payments

(i) Not later than one year  131.21  127.55 

(ii) Later than one year but not later than 
five years  127.42  142.03 

Total  258.63  269.58 

18 Trade Payables

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

(i) Dues to micro, small and medium 
enterprises  15.98  39.93 

(ii) Dues to others  5,593.45  6,056.35 

(iii) Other Creditors  874.68  1,596.22 

Total  6,484.12  7,692.50 
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Trade Payables Ageing

(For Current Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years  Total (₹.in Lakhs) 

MSME  15.98  -    -    -    15.98 

Others 6300.93 92.93 2.50 71.78  6,468.14 

Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  6,316.91  92.93  2.50  71.78  6,484.12 

Trade Payables Ageing

(For Previous Reporting period)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years Total (₹.in Lakhs)

MSME  39.93  -    -    -    39.93 

Others 7460.45 25.87 85.31 80.95  7,652.57 

Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  7,500.37  25.87  85.31  80.95  7,692.50 

19 Other Financial Liabilities

Non Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Lease Liability  113.20  123.09 

Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments  22.56  29.14 

Performance guarantee deposit  369.61  369.61 

Total  505.37  521.84 

Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Retention money  236.24  62.61 

Lease Liability  117.22  113.02 

Total  353.46  175.63 

Note -  During the year, the Company made a reassessment of its lease agreements in order to ascertain whether the agreements meet the 
definition of a lease. The net impact of these changes has been transferred to Retained Earnings.						    
			 

Fair Value Hierarchy

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars Carrying value as at Fair value as at

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Amortised cost

(i) Borrowings  3,549.09  10,001.08  3,549.09  10,001.08 

(ii) Trade Payables  6,484.12  7,692.50  6,484.12  7,692.50 

(iii) Other financial 
liabilities  858.83  697.47  858.83  697.47 

Total Financial Liabilities  10,892.04  18,391.05  10,892.04  18,391.05 
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20 Provisions

a) Non Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Provision for employee benefits

(i) Gratuity Payable  523.21  479.66 

(ii) Leave encashment  282.58  260.93 

Total  805.79  740.59 

(i) Movement in provisions

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

a) Provision for Gratuity

Opening Balance 479.66  490.84 

Additional Provisions made 132.55  88.87 

Provisions released ( paid) 89.00  100.05 

Closing Balance 523.21 479.66

b) Leave Encashment

Opening Balance 260.93  257.53 

Additional Provisions made 193.46  151.27 

Provisions released ( paid) 171.81  147.86 

Closing Balance 282.58 260.93

b) Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Dividend  0.12  0.12 

Total  0.12  0.12 

21 Other Liabilities

a) Non- Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Endo Global Biologicals - significant financing component  1,998.93  1,313.62 

Deferred Grant  166.38  190.16 

Total  2,165.31  1,503.78 

b) Current

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Other accrued liabilities  1,914.12  2,382.76 

Advances from customers  5,789.13  6,532.82 

Capital creditors  2,637.45  745.83 

Dues to statutory/government authorities  243.97  287.31 

Grants received in advance  -    82.32 

Total  10,584.68  10,031.03 

22 Current Tax Liability (Net)

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2021  31.03.2021 

Current

Income Tax Provision  14,238.89  9,669.93 

Less: Advance tax paid  12,300.00  7,100.00 

Total  1,938.89  2,569.93 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

23 Revenue From Operations

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Sale of products & services

Domestic sales  23,215.28  15,946.21 

Export sales  99,910.32  94,377.81 

Total  1,23,125.60  1,10,324.03 

23.1 Change in Contract Liabilities:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,313.62  524.23 

Add: Interest expense during the year  685.31  789.39 

Less: Invoices raised during the year  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,998.93  1,313.62 

Expected revenue recognition from remaining performance obligations

-within one year  1,998.93  - 

-more than one year  -  1,313.62 

23.2 Performance Obligation

In relation to information about company’s performance obligation, the entity satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time .

24 Other Income

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Interest from deposits & advances  957.57  84.46 

Other income  292.70  677.49 

Capital Gain and Dividend  937.66  184.27 

Fair value Gain-Mutual Fund  422.16  510.38 

Forex gain (net)  1,332.57  1,597.12 

Grant received  115.85  217.70 

MEIS Duty Credit Scripts  835.11  445.05 

Lease rent received  4.44  4.44 

Total  4,898.05  3,720.91 

25 Cost of materials consumed

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening stock  1,534.74  6,560.70 

Add: Chemicals and reagents  43,279.54  35,762.26 

 44,814.28  42,322.96 

Less: Closing stock  3,784.51  1,534.74 

Total  41,029.77  40,788.22 

26 Change in Work in Progress

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening stock

Finished goods  358.57  3,454.93 

Work-in-progress  1,135.54  1,951.00 

 1,494.11  5,405.93 

Less: Closing stock

Finished goods  455.36  358.57 

Work-in-progress  1,176.10  1,135.54 

Total  (137.35)  3,911.82 
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27 Employee Benefits Expense (₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Salaries and allowances  12,443.43  13,075.29 
Contribution to provident and other funds  646.83  589.27 
Staff welfare  649.19  546.27 
Employees Benefit Expense  11.94  7.69 
Total  13,751.39  14,218.52 
28 Finance Costs

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Interest Expense on 
(i) Interest - Term loans  182.84  648.37 
(ii) Interest - Cash credit  30.69  139.73 
(iii) Interest - Finance lease  23.53  26.13 
(iv) Interest - IND AS lease  22.86  16.60 
(v) Bank charges  62.90  115.10 
(vi) Interest on Endo Global-Significant Financing Component  685.31  623.01 
(vii) Interest on MSME  0.50  1.82 
(viii) Interest on unsecured loan  -    125.88 
Total  1,008.63  1,696.63 
29 Administrative Expenses

(₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Advertisement and business promotion  11.68  11.82 
Auditors’ remuneration  17.50  16.00 
Amortisation of deferred loan (ABPPL)  7.81  7.81 
Bad debts/Provision for doubtful debts  -    34.77 
Commission expenses  430.52  162.63 
Communication expenses  88.06  82.55 
Corporate social responsibility expenses  81.72  63.93 
Donation  7.50  4.50 
Freight and forwarding charges  531.60  604.31 
Health and safety expenses  377.73  375.29 
Insurance  299.99  265.03 
Interest on statutory dues  210.29  18.36 
Internal Audit Fees  5.50  6.50 
Legal and professional fees  108.89  576.21 
Loss from sale of assets  18.41  18.70 
Membership and subscription  70.43  54.38 
Miscellaneous expenses  18.52  145.89 
Fair value measurment expenses  51.28  687.87 
Pollution control expenses  338.88  120.03 
Power and fuel  3,633.18  3,422.52 
Printing and stationery  162.80  165.34 
Processing charges  390.54  404.71 
R & D expenses  2,478.80  688.73 
R & M - Building  43.32  81.64 
R & M - Others  595.74  505.35 
R & M - Plant and machinery  1,172.92  1,084.80 
Rates and taxes  517.84  784.06 
Rent  24.01  25.48 
Security charges  150.82  141.81 
Training and recruitment expenses  7.69  4.02 
Travelling and conveyance  127.52  68.23 
Total  11,981.50  10,633.27 
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29.1 As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net 
profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.

29 Auditor’s remuneration break-up

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

(i) Statutory audit fees  17.50  15.00 

(ii) Certification and other reimbursement  1.92  -   

(iii) Internal audit fees  5.50  6.50 

Total  24.92  21.50 

30 Tax Expense

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

A - Current Tax

Current tax on profits for the year  14,238.89  9,669.93 

Total  14,238.89  9,669.93 

30.1 Reconciliation of tax expenses to accounting profit                     

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars   31.03.2022   31.03.2021 

Accounting profit before tax  54,614.09  36,557.92 

Tax @ 25.168%  13,745.27  9,200.90 

Adjustments

Expenses that are disallowed as per Income Tax Act  4,271.71  6,449.26 

Expenses that are specifically allowed as per the Income Tax Act  (4,660.49)  (5,244.01)

Short term Capital gains  379.81  38.57 

Long term Capital gains  557.86  37.78 

Deduction under section 80JJA  (55.27)  (58.26)

Tax Expenses recognised  in the statement of profit and loss  14,238.90  10,424.24 

Income tax credit/(expense) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :  28.03  11.44 

Tax effect on actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit obligations  28.03  11.44 

31 Other comprehensive income 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

i) Actuarial gains & losses  (111.38)  (45.46)

ii) Deferred tax  28.03  11.44 

Total  (83.34)  (34.02)

32 Research and development expenditure	
Expenditure on research activities are recognized as expenses and charged to Statement of profit and loss. Development costs of products are 
also charged to the Statement of profit and loss unless a product’s technological feasibility has been established and the ability of the asset to 
generate future economic benefits, in such case expenditure is capitalized. The amount capitalized comprises expenditure that can be directly 
attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating, producing and making the asset ready for its intended use. Fixed assets 
utilized for research and development are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Tangible Assets and Intangible 
Assets. During the year, the below mentioned expenditure is incurred towards research and development:	 		

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Salaries and allowances  654.19  474.27 

Consumables  1,650.51  132.47 

Electricity expenses  64.66  65.11 

Other expenses  109.43  16.88 

Total expenses charged to statement of profit and loss  2,478.80  688.73 
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33 Earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Basic EPS Diluted EPS Basic EPS Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year  84,84,581  84,85,047  83,79,833  83,80,299 

Weighted no of equity shares issued during the 
year    2,84,481  2,84,481  32,142  32,142 

Weighted average number of equity shares for 
calculation of earnings per share  87,69,062  87,69,528  84,11,975  84,12,441 

34 Employee benefit expenses

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Salaries and Wages  12,443.43  13,075.29 

(ii) Contribution to provident and other funds  646.83  589.27 

(iii) Staff training and welfare expenses  649.19  546.27 

(iv) Employee benefit expenses  11.94  7.69 

Total  13,751.39  14,218.52 

*Includes contribution to defined contribution plan for the year ended March 31, 2022 Rs.326.00  lacs (for the year ended March 31, 2021:Rs.240.13 lacs)

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss in respect of gratuity and leave encashment cost

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave Encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Present value of projected benefit obligation  909.72  795.60  282.58  260.93 

(ii) Service cost  121.05  114.23  51.61  38.21 

(iii) Net interest on net defined liability/(asset)  29.94  29.80  12.04  12.41 

(iv) Re-measurement - actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in OCI  (18.43)  (55.18)  129.81  100.64 

Net present value of projected benefit obligation  1,042.28  884.45  476.04  412.20 

(i) Discount rate 7.39% 6.88% 7.39% 6.88%

(ii) Salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Change in projected benefit obligations

(i) Obligations at the beginning of the year  795.60  715.68  260.93  257.53 

(ii) Service cost  121.05  114.23  51.61  38.21 

(iii) Interest expense  53.27  47.47  12.04  12.41 

(iv) Benefits settled  (42.52)  (27.04)  (171.81)  (147.86)

(v) Actuarial (gain)/loss  (17.68)  (54.73)  129.81  100.64 

Obligations at end of the year  909.72  795.60  282.58  260.93 
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Bifurcation of present value of obligations at the end of the valuation period as per schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave Encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Current liabilities  203.30  159.84  94.89  81.05 

(ii) Non-Current liabilities  706.42  635.76  187.68  179.89 

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Gratuity  Leave encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Change in plan assets

(i) Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value  315.95  224.83  -    -   

(ii) Interest income on plan assets  23.34  17.67  -    -   

(iii) Re-measurement - actuarial gain/ (loss)  0.75  0.45  -    -   

(iv) Benefit payments from plan assets  (42.52)  (27.04)  -    -   

(v) Contributions from employers  89.00  100.03  171.81  147.86 

(vi) Benefits settled  -    -    (171.81)  (147.86)

Plan assets at the end of the year at fair value  386.51  315.95  -    -   

The experience adjustments, meaning difference between changes in plan assets and obligations expected on the basis of actuarial assumption 
and actual changes in those assets and obligations are as follows:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

(i) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities  2.01  (50.70)  132.10  101.24 

Percentage of opening plan liabilities 0.25% -7.08% 50.63% 39.31%

(ii) Experience adjustment on plan assets  0.75  0.45  -    -   

Percentage of opening plan assets 0.24% 0.20%  -    -   

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Year 1  203.30  159.84  94.89  81.05 

Year 2  162.63  120.21  65.52  56.14 

Year 3  146.88  112.89  49.19  43.56 

Year 4  136.79  104.20  38.43  33.76 

Year 5  107.56  100.83  27.43  27.79 

Next 5 year Payouts  310.84  296.71  57.05  61.52 

The weighted average of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity is 4.5 as at 31 March 2022

The weighted average of the defined benefit obligation for leave encashment is 3.67 as at 31 March 2022
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35 Disclosure with respect to Ind AS 116 - Leases			 
Information about Leases Assets for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:			 

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “As at March 31, 2022” “As at March 31, 2021”

Balance as at beginning of the year 193.42 450.16

Additions 127.28 131.90

Adjustments during the year 50.77 -211.48

Deletions  -   -37.40

Depreciation* -122.87 -139.76

Balance as at end of the year 248.60 193.42

*The aggregate depreciation expense on Right-of-use assets is included under depreciation expense in Statement of Profit and Loss.	

The changes/movement in Lease Liabilities of the Company are as follows:

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “As at March 31, 2022” “As at March 31, 2021”

Balance as at beginning of the year 236.12 762.17

Additions 127.28 150.86

Adjustments during the year -15.08 -257.83

Deletions -298.78

Payment of lease liabilities -140.74 -136.90

Accreditation of interest 22.86 16.60

Balance as at end of the year 230.43 236.12

Current Liabilities 117.21 113.02

Non-Current Liabilities 113.21 123.09

Total cash outflow for leases  140.74  136.90 

The table below provides details regarding amounts recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss:

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “For the year ended March 31, 2022” “For the year ended March 31, 2021”

Expenses relating to short-term leases and/
or leases of low-value items

Interest on lease liabilities 22.86 16.60

Depreciation expense 122.87 139.76

Total 145.72 156.35

Contractual maturities of Lease Liabilities on undiscounted basis

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars “As at March 31, 2022” “As at March 31, 2021”

Less than one year 131.21 127.55

One to five years 127.42 142.03

258.64 269.58

36 Financial Risk Management							     
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The 
Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial 
performance. The primary market risk to The Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate 
foreign exchange related risk exposures. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have 
the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is The Company’s policy that no trading in derivative for speculative purposes may be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
(a) Credit risk: 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from The Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk arises from cash held 
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial 
assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other 
factors.							     



Annual Report 2022108

Financial Statements | Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Trade and other receivables: 
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, 
including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.		
(c ) Investments: 
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit 
rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties, and does not have any significant concentration 
of exposures to specific industry sectors.							     
(d) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity 
risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the Company has unutilized 
credit limits with banks. 
The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and 
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
The working capital position of the Company is given below:”	

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31,2022     As at March 31,2021

Cash & cash equivalents  33,830.75  3,628.15 

Investments in mutual funds (quoted)  26,913.33  20,912.34 

Contractual maturities of significant financials liabilities as at

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Loans & borrowings  2,959.26  589.84  3,549.09 

Lease Liability  117.22  113.20  230.42 

Trade payables and accrued 
expenses  6,484.12  -    6,484.12 

Other liabilities  10,584.68  -    10,584.68 

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Loans & borrowings  2,959.26  589.84  3,549.09 

Lease Liability  117.22  113.20  230.42 

Trade payables and accrued 
expenses  6,484.12  -    6,484.12 

Other liabilities  10,584.68  -    10,584.68 

(e ) Foreign currency risk: 
The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in U.S. Dollars). A significant 
portion of The Company’s revenues are in US Dollars  while a significant portion of its costs are in Indian Rupees. As a result, if the value of the 
Indian Rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, The Company’s revenues measured in Rupees may decrease. The exchange rate 
between the Indian Rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially 
in the future. The Company has an internal committee which meets on a periodic basis to formulate the strategy for foreign currency risk 
management. When necessary, the Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, to mitigate the 
risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its forecasted cash flows and trade receivables.
(f) Interest rate risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to The Company’s debt obligations with floating 
interest rates and investments. The Company’s borrowings and investments are primarily short-term, which do not expose it to significant interest 
rate risk.						    
37 Capital Management Structure							     
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends on its equity shares. The Company’s 
objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value. 
The capital structure is as follows:							     
The Company is predominantly equity financed which is evident from the capital structure table. Further, The Company has always been a net cash 
Group with cash and bank balances along with investment which is predominantly investment in liquid and short term mutual funds being far in 
excess of debt.							     
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39 Segment information : 							     
Segments are identified in line with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 “Operating Segments”, taking into consideration the internal 
organization and business activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it operates and separate financial information 
availability.							     
Company has identified two business segments viz,Contract Manufacturing;Development & Discovery Services and Speciality Ingredients (product 
business) during the year.Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which 
are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the basis of associated revenue. All other expenses which are not 
attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.				  

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021

Total equity attributable to the equity share holders of the group  1,35,499.87  70,146.11 

As percentage of the total capital 100% 100%

current loans & borrowings  2,959.26  8,028.94 

Non current loans & borrowings  589.84  1,972.14 

Total loans & borrowings  3,549.09  10,001.08 

As percentage of the total capital 2.62% 14%

Total capital (loans and borrowings and equity)  1,39,048.96  80,147.19 

38 Contingent Liabilities & Capital Commitments

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021

Commitments

Estimated amount of expected capital commitments  24,968  8,917 

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:

Income tax - AY 2015-16 - CIT Appeals 1, Bengaluru  326  326 

Income tax - AY 2017-18 - ITAT , Bengaluru  55  55 

Service Tax-Appeal-FY: 2011-2015  12  12 

Others:

Letter of credit  47  597 

Bank guarantees  70  70 

Corporate guarantees:

Guarantees given to Federal Bank on behalf of associate company for securing 
financial assistances in the form for working capital loan.  100  50 

  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31,2022 Year ended March 31,2021

Segmental Performance

Business Vertical:

Contract Manufacturing  1,10,233  99,643.59 

R&D Services  12,903  10,680.00 

Total  1,23,137  1,10,324 

Revenue wise

Export  99,950  94,346 

Domestic  23,186  15,977 

Total  1,23,137  1,10,324 

Geography wise sales

North America (USA)  51,771  56,387 

Europe  45,959  28,620 

India  23,186  15,977 

Rest of asia  1,431  8,682 

Others  789  657 

Total  1,23,137  1,10,324 
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Summarised segment information for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars CDMO Speciality Ingredients  Total(₹.in Lakhs) 

Revenue from operaions  94,721  28,404  1,23,126 

Allocated expenses  41,970  21,694  63,664 

Segment Result  52,751  6,711  59,462 

Total unallocable expenses  2,917 

Operating income  56,545 

Other income  4,898 

Profit before tax  54,659 

Tax expenses  14,060 

Profit for the year  40,599 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses (unallocable)  5,776 

40 Corporate Social Responsibility						    
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net 
profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. During the financial year 2021-22 the 
company has spent below amounts towards  rejuvenating bommasandra lake  work initiated by bommasandra industrial association; construction 
of anganwadi kendra at ramnagar ; contribution to Vanavasi Kalyan for education of tribal children and their hostel expenses;  contribution 
towards FNDR for research expenses for neglected diseases; etc. Apart from the amount spent company is also exploring some more CSR 
projects & also planning to  undertake various infrastructure facilities in the coming years.

As on March 31, 2022, a cumulative amount of Rs.450.86  lakhs is unspent. No provision towards the CSR expenditure has been made in the books 
of account.			 

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31,2022 Year ended March 31,2021

Gross amount required to be spent during the year  399.96  196.54 

Amount spent during the year  81.72  63.93 

Amount spent in local area  81.72  63.96 

Shortfall at the end of the year / period.  318.25  132.61 

Total of previous years shortfall.  450.86  132.61 

41 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure: (₹.in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Unhedged Hedged through forward or derivative Natural Hedge

</=1 year >1 year </=1 year >1 year </=1 year > 1 Year

FCY-Receivables (A)

Exports  20,439.91  -  530.65  -  - 

Loans to JV/WOS  -  -  -  -  - 

Others  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (A)  20,439.91  -  530.65  -  - 

FCY-Payables (B)

Imports  1,271.13  -  -  -  - 

Trade credits  -  -  -  -  - 

ECBs  -  -  -  -  - 

Other FCY loans  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (B)  1,271.13  -  -  -  - 

Total Exposure (A-B)/(B-A)  19,168.78  -  530.65  -  - 
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42 Trade Payables and Micro, Small and medium Enterprises

Trade Payables have been classified as Current and Non-Current. The Management has identified:

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year  15.98  39.93 

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting 
year  0.50  1.82 

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day  -    -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year  0.50  1.82 

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remanining unpaid at the end of the accounting 
year  2.32  1.82 

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such 
date when the interest dues as above actually paid  -    -   

43 Related Parties

Name of the related party Nature of relationship with the company Country  of  Incorporation/ Residential Status

Ajay Bhardwaj Managing Director Indian

Ravindra KC Whole time director Indian

Ganesh Sambasivam Whole time director Indian

Ramakrishnan K Company Secretary Indian

Ishaan Bhardwaj Manager-I Indian

Krithika Ganesh By.Manager-II Indian

Anthem Biopharma Pvt Ltd Associate India

Neoanthem Lifesciences Pvt Ltd Wholly Owned Subsidiary India

43.1 Transactions with above related parties 

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Name of the related party Nature of transaction
Year Ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Ishaan Bhardwaj Remuneration paid  28.60  38.70 

Krithika Ganesh Remuneration paid  5.07  -   

Anthem Biopharma Pvt Ltd

Sale of goods & services  -    0.29 

Purchase of goods & services  -    14.17 

Business support services  8.69  10.58 

Interest income (Interest charged 
on loans given to Biopharma)  51.38  50.59 

43.2 Balances receivable from  related parties are as follows

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Name of the related party Nature of transaction
Year Ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Anthem Biopharma Pvt Ltd

For sale of goods & services  310.78  310.78 

For rendering of services  0.40  2.00 

For loans and advances given  724.62  728.38 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Name Designation
Remuneration paid for the Year ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Ajay Bhardwaj Managing Director  434.86  591.74 

Ravindra K C Whole Time Director  434.86  591.44 

Ganesh Sambasivam Whole Time Director  434.86  591.44 

Ramakrishnan K Company Secretary  64.65  320.43 
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45 Covid-19 Impact :			
Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the ongoing pandemic relating to COVID-19.In order to address the COVID-19 
related impact, company has taken several business continutiy measures to ensure minimum disruption with respect to prodcution, supply chain 
& logistics, procurments and employee health and saftey during the financial year.While the company has not experinced any significant difficulties 
with respect to market demand, liquidity,sourcing and capital expansion project,company has assessed the financial impact of the covid-19 
situation based on the internal and external  source of information available  and also company will continue to monitor any material changes to 
future economic  conditions.

 46 Key financial ratios

Figures for the current 
reporting period

Figures for the previous 
reporting period

Reason if the variance is more 
than 25%

1. Current Ratio  4.92  2.16  Reduction in borrowings 

2. Debt - Equity Ratio  0.03  0.14  Reduction in borrowings 

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio  7.66  8.67 NA

“4. Return on Equity Ratio  “  0.39  0.48 NA

5. Inventory turnover ratio  26.40  13.75 Due to increase in inventory 

6. Trade Receivables turnover ratio  4.24  6.13 Due to increase in receivable

7. Trade payables turnover ratio  6.11  5.99 NA

8. Net capital turnover ratio  2.04  4.53 Due to increase in current assets

9. Net profit ratio (Net Profit/Net Sales)  0.33  0.25 Improved margins

10. Return on Capital employed (EBIT/Capital Employed)  0.41  0.54 NA

47 Other Statutory Disclosures						    
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or						   
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.						   
(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:						    
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 						    
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.						    
(iii) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
Benami property.						    
(iv) No Relationship or Transactions with any struck off companies during the year.						    
(v) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.			 
(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.					   
(vii) The Company has not any such transaction which is  not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.						    
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Consolidtaed Accounting Policies
1.Corporate information:

Anthem Biosciences Private Limited (“the Company) has been set up as a Life sciences/ Biotechnology based 
venture specialising in the manufacture of catalytic preparation, other organic compounds such as speciality organic 
molecules, biologically active peptides etc., which are high-value products used in drug, agrochemical and speciality 
chemicals industries. During the financial year 2020-21, the company set up a wholly owned subsidiary Neoanthem 
Lifesciences Private Limited (CIN No . U24239KA2020PTC136337). As a result, these are the first Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company. The company along with its subsidiary are hereby referred to as “The Group”. 

The Company has received the letter of permission under the 100% EOU scheme for manufacture of catalytic 
preparation and other organic compounds from the office of the Development Commissioner, CSEZ, sub office 
in Karnataka, vide letter No. 1/80/2006:PER:EOU:KR:CSEZ/106 dated 19th January 2007, which is further extended 
vide letter No : 1/80/2006:EOU:CSEZ/1276 dated 11th July 2022,valid till 10th July 2027 . In accordance with the said 
letter of permission, the facilities at the factory located at Bommasandra Industrial Area are with its best in class 
infrastructure which includes a modern c-GMP kilo lab and a versatile GMP pilot plant. Anthem Biosciences has the 
capacity to do GMP synthesis from milligram to kilogram and multi-kilogram scale. The projects results are initially 
transmitted by means of reports followed by the manufacture of small sample quantities that are sent to clients 
for testing purpose. The Company has received approval from Department of Scientific and Industrial Research 
Technology for in-house research and development for the purpose of section 35 (2AB) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961 beginning 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2017 and further renewed  till 31.03.2024 vide approval letter no:F.No.TU/IV-
RD/2954/2021 dated 18th March 2021.

2. Significant accounting policies:

(A) Basis of preparation and presentation:

a) Statement of compliance:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind 
AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 as applicable. 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the Group as a going concern on the basis of 
relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Group’s annual reporting date, March 31, 2022. These consolidated financial 
statements were authorized for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on 6th September 2022.

b) Basis of measurement:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, 
except for the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

i.	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments);

ii.	 Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.

c) Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. The financial statements of the Group 
are consolidated on line-by-line basis. Intra-group transactions, balances and any unrealized gains arising from 
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated, but only to the extent that there is no 
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evidence of impairment. All temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from 
intra-group transactions are recognized as per Ind AS 12, Income Taxes.

For the purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of the subsidiary have 
been aligned with the policies adopted by the Parent.

d) Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, 
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included 
in the notes. 

e) Fair valuation:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes 
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure 
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing  transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and 
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as a net realisable value in Ind AS 
2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to 
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

	» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the group 
can access at the measurement date;

	» Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly; and

	» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Group operates (i.e. the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the 
Group.

(ii) Foreign currency transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functional currencies using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss and reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.
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(iii) Financial instruments:

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset(other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are 
included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place(regular way trade) are recognised 
on trade date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Group are classified in the following 
categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account 
(FVTPL), non-derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL and derivative financial instruments (under 
the category of financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL. The classification offinancial instruments depends 
on the objective of the business model for which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial 
instruments at initial recognition.

(a) Non-derivative financial assets:

(i) Financial assets at amortized cost:

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a)	 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and

(b)	 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which 
are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss.

Amortized cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and 
other advances and eligible current and non-current assets. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and 
in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty on the 
principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, in banks and demand 
deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand, book overdraft and are 
considered part of the Group’s cash management system.

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition the Group may elect to designate 
the financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Financial assets included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair values with all changes in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(b) Non-derivative financial liabilities:

(i) Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized at 
fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(B) Property, plant and equipment:

a) Recognition and measurement: 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
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b) Depreciation:

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a written down value 
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired under finance lease and leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and lease term. The estimated useful lives of 
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Category Useful Life ( years)

Land 0
Roads 5-10 
Buildings 5-60
Plant and machinery 15-20
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fittings 10
Laboratory equipments 10
Office equipment 5
Pipelines 15
Computers and DP units 3-6
Motor vehicles 8

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. When parts of an 
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is 
capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from 
the consolidated financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and 
the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital 
advances and capital work- in-progress respectively.

(C) Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized 
over their respective estimated useful lives on a written down value basis, from the date that they are available for 
use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects 
of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known 
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows 
from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category Useful Life
Software licenses Earlier of  license period or 1-3 years

(D) Leases:

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components 
of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative 
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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The Group recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at 
the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of- use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the 
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of 
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying 
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The 
right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of 
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on 
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of- use assets are tested for impairment whenever 
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in 
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, if that 
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing 
rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise 
price of a purchase option where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties 
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease 
liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, 
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect 
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment 
to the right-of-use asset and consolidated statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. 
Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the 
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in 
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments 
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(E) Impairment:

(a) Financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition 
of impairment loss. The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. 

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all 
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime 
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12-months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the group expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original effective 
interest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash flows, the group is required to consider:
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(i)	 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life 
of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be 
estimated reliably, then the group is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

(ii)	 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade 
receivable. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the 
trade receivable. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated.ECL impairment loss 
allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss. 

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost, contractual revenue receivable. ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. 
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying 
amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross 
carrying amount.

(b) Non-financial assets:

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset 
or a group of non-financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the amount of 
impairment loss. An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and 
recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the 
Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written 
off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
through profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater 
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are 
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

(F) Employee benefits:

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either 
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s only obligation 
is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets 
to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for 
defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a 
defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial 
and investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated using the 
projected unit credit method.

The Company has the following employee benefit plans:

a) Provident Fund: 

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged 
to the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year when the employee renders the related service and the 
contributions to the government funds are due. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to 
provident fund authorities.

b) Gratuity:

For the purpose of administration of gratuity of the employees of the Company, the Company has established Anthem 
Biosciences Private Limited Employees Gratuity Trust. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the 
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Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based 
on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity 
plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include 
an expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual 
return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined 
liability or asset through other comprehensive income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

c) Compensated absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of 
the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or 
termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the 
employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. 

The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Group expects 
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company 
recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation. Non-accumulating compensated 
absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and 
losses immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(G) Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of there porting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a 
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for 
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and 
the expected cost of terminating the contract.

(H) Revenue :

a) Sale of goods &services:

Group earns revenue primarily from sale of goods, providing scientific & technical consultancy services. Revenue 
is recognised when a promise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied by transferring 
control over the promised goods to the customer by delivery of goods for shipment as agreed with the customers. 

The amount of revenue to be recognised (transaction price) is based on the consideration expected to be received in 
exchange for goods, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales tax or other taxes directly 
linked to sales. If a contract contains more than one performance obligation, the transaction price is allocated to 
each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. 

Revenue from product sales are recorded net of allowances for estimated rebates, cash discounts and estimates of 
product returns, all of which are established at the time of sale. 
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The Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the effects of time value of money if the timing of 
payments agreed to by the parties to the contract provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the 
transfer of goods or services to the customer. The impact of the time value of money is shown as Contract Liability.

b) Rental income:

Rental income is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. Lease incentives 
granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

c) Dividend & interest income :

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using 
the effective interest method.

(I) Finance expense:

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the fair value of foreign 
exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit or loss.

(J) Income tax:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. 

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amount in consolidated financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the 
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax 
asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date

(K) Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
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issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted 
as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are 
adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

(L) Research and development costs :

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and 
commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Group has an 
intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

(M) Government grants:

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

(i)	 the Group will comply with the conditions attached to them; and

(ii)	 the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. 
Such grants are deducted in reporting the related expense. When loan or similar assistance is provided by 
government or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this 
favorable interest is recognized as government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at 
fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and 
the proceeds received.

(N) Inventories:

Inventories consist of (a) Raw materials, (b) Work-in-progress and (d) Finished goods. Inventories are carried at 
lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of raw materials is determined on a weighted average basis and/
specific cost wherever applicable. Cost of work in progress &finished goods produced includes direct material, 
labour cost and a proportion of manufacturing overheads.

(O) Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped or re-classified to conform to the present year’s presentation.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,2022, the ‘’MCA’’ amended 
the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below.

a.	 Ind AS 16-Property, Plant and Equipments:

b.	 Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;

c.	 Ind AS 103- Business Combination.

d.	 Ind AS 109-Financial Instruments.

e.	 Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

f.	  Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

These amendments are effective from April 01, 2022.The Company believes that the aforementioned amendments will 
not materially impact the financial statements of the Company.
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Neoanthem Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Anthem Neoanthem Lifesciences Private Limited 

Report on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Neoanthem Lifesciences Private Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the standalone Statement 
of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Act’) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2022, its loses and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the code of ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act 
2013, with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position and financial performance, and the cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting 
Principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error..

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has not 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

	» Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances.

	» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

	» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

	» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As the Companies (Independent Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of subsection (11) of Section 143 of the Act is not applicable to the company we are not reporting on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	 Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50 Crores and no 
borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time. during the year, the Company is exempted from 
getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017.
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g)	 The provisions of section 197 of the Act does not apply to the Company, hence reporting under Section 143(3)(g) is 
not required.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has no litigation pending against it. 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv.	

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall:

	» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company  or,

	» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

	» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

	» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under subclause (iv) (a) 
and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

For K.P.Rao & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 003135S

Mohan R Lavi

Partner

Membership No. 029340

Place: Bangalore				  

Date:

UDIN:  22029340AVJCJN3959
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 Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 
PARTICULARS Note  As at 31.03.2022   As at 31.03.2021  

I ASSETS
1) Non-current assets

a) Property, plant and equipment  -    -   
b) Capital work in progress 2  115.32  9.44 
c) Deferred tax assets (net) 3  0.13  0.07 

Total Non-Current assets  115.45  9.51 
2) Current assets

a) Financial assets  
i) Cash and cash equivalents 4  3.77  14.60 

b) Other current assets 4  3.41  0.06 
Total Current assets  7.18  14.66 
TOTAL ASSETS  122.62  24.16 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

a) Equity Share capital     5  15.00  15.00 
b) Other equity 5.4  (46.35)  (1.28)

Total Equity  (31.35)  13.72 

Liabilities
1) Non-current liabilities

a) Provisions
b) Term Loan  -    -   
c) Other non-current liabilities 6  138.46  -   

Total non-current liabilities  138.46  -   
2) Current liabilities

a) Provisions  -    -   
b) Other current liabilities 6  15.52  10.44 

Total current liabilities  15.52  10.44 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  122.62  24.16 
Corporate information and Significant accounting policies. 1

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

								      

For K.P. Rao & Co., 								        For and on behalf of the Board		

Chartered Accountants								      

Firm Registration No. 003135S								     

Mohan Lavi								        Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C

Partner									         Managing Director		  Director

Membership No.029340							       DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore							       Ramakrishnan K			 

Date  : September 06, 2022						      Company Secretary			

Neoanthem Financial Statements
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See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

								      

For K.P. Rao & Co., 								        For and on behalf of the Board		

Chartered Accountants								      

Firm Registration No. 003135S								     

Mohan Lavi								        Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C

Partner									         Managing Director		  Director

Membership No.029340							       DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore							       Ramakrishnan K			 

Date  : September 06, 2022						      Company Secretary			

Statement of Profit and Loss  for the period ending on March 31, 2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 
PARTICULARS Note As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 

I Gross Revenue from Operations  -    -   
II Other income  -    -   
III Total Revenue (I + II)  -    -   
IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed  -    -   
Change in Work in Progress  -    -   
Employee benefits expense  -    -   
Finance costs 7  0.09  -   
Depreciation and amortization expense  -    -   
Other expenses 8  45.05  1.34 
Total expenses (IV)  45.14  1.34 

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  (45.14)  (1.34)
VI Exceptional items  -    -   
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI)  (45.14)  (1.34)
VIII Tax expense

1) Current tax 9  -    -   
2) Deferred tax  (0.07)  (0.07)

 (0.07)  (0.07)
IX Profit/(Loss) for the year( VII-VIII )  (45.07)  (1.28)
X Other comprehensive income/(loss)

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  -    -   
Deferred Tax on above items  -    -   

b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) (Comprising Profit(Loss) and 
Other Comprehensive Income for the period)  (45.07)  (1.28)

XII Earnings per equity share: (In Rs.)
1) Basic  (0.00)  (0.00)
2) Diluted  (0.00)  (0.00)

Corporate information and Significant accounting policies. . Note. 1
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 Cash flow statement for the period ending March 31, 2022  (₹.in Lakhs) 
Description As on 31.03.2022 As a 31.03.2022  
A) Cash Flow from operating activities:

Net Profit before taxation  (45.14)  (1.34)
Adjustment:(+/-)
Depreciation/ Amortisation  -    -   
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  (45.14)  (1.34)
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Other financial Assets  -   
Other Current Assets  (3.35)  (0.06)
Other Current Liabilities  5.08  10.44 
Other non Current Liabilities  138.46  -   
Cash used in operations  95.04  9.04 
Income taxes paid  -   
Net cash generated in Operating Activities  95.04  9.04 

 -   
B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

(Increase)/Decrease in CWIP  (105.88)  (9.44)
Net cash used in Investing activities  (105.88)  (9.44)

C) Cash flow from Financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Proceeds from working capital funding from holding co  -    15.00 
Net cash (Used)/ Generated in Financing Activities  -    15.00 

Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (10.83)  14.60 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (beginning of the year)  14.60  -   
Cash and Cash Equivalents (ending period)  3.77  14.60 

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

								      

For K.P. Rao & Co., 								        For and on behalf of the Board		

Chartered Accountants								      

Firm Registration No. 003135S								     

Mohan Lavi								        Ajay Bhardwaj			   Ravindra K C

Partner									         Managing Director		  Director

Membership No.029340							       DIN:00333704			   DIN:01580534

Place : Bangalore							       Ramakrishnan K			 

Date  : September 06, 2022						      Company Secretary			
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2.Capital work-in-progress
(₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Capital work-in-progress	  115.32  9.44 

 115.32  9.44 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule	
As at 31 March 2022

CWIP
 Amount in capital work in progress for a period of 

Total(₹.in Lakhs)
 Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years
Project work in progress  105.88  9.44  -    -    115.32 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31 March 2022

CWIP
 Amount in capital work in progress for a period of 

Total(₹.in Lakhs)
 Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years
Project work in progress  9.44  -    -    -    9.44 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

6.Trade Payables Ageing as on 31.03.2022

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 
years Total(₹.in Lakhs)

MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Others 12.37  -    -    -    12.37 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Total	  12.37  -    -    -    12.37 

Trade Payables Ageing as on 31.03.2021

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 
years Total(₹.in Lakhs)

MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Others 8.64  -    -    -    8.64 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Total	  8.64  -    -    -    8.64 
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Statement of Changes In Equity for the period ending March 31, 2022

A - Equity Share Capital
Particulars

(₹.in Lakhs) 
Particulars Number Amount
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 150000  15.00 
ADD: Issued during the year  -    -   
Balance as at March 31, 2022 150000  15.00 

B  - Other Equity as on March 31, 2022

General 
Reserves

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

Other items 
of Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total

Balance as at April 01, 2021  -    -    (1.28)  -    (1.28)
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the 
year  -    -    -    -    -   

Profit/(loss) for the year  -    -    (45.07)  -    (45.07)
Balance as at March 31, 2022  -    -    (46.35)  -    (46.35)

Other Equity as on March 31, 2022

General 
Reserves

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

Other items 
of Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total

Balance as at April 01, 2020  -    -    -    -    -   
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the 
year  -    -    -    -    -   

Profit/(loss) for the year  -    -    (1.28)  -    (1.28)
Balance as at March 31, 2021  -    -    (1.28)  -    (1.28)
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Notes forming part of the  consolidated financial statements

5) Equity Share Capital

Particulars
As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

No.of Shares  (₹.in Lakhs) No.of Shares  (₹.in Lakhs) 

Authorised Share capital  

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each   1,50,000  15.00  1,50,000  15.00 

 1,50,000  15.00  1,50,000  15.00 

Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each (Rs.10/- each in FY22)  1,50,000  15.00  1,50,000  15.00 

Total  1,50,000  15.00  1,50,000  15.00 

5.3 The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2022 set out below:			 

Sl. No Name of the shareholder As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
No. of Shares held % holding No. of Shares held % holding

1 Anthem Biosciences Private 
Limited (Holding Co.,)	 150000 100 150000 100

5.4 Other Equity  (₹.in Lakhs)
Particulars  As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

a) General Reserve  -    -   

b) Share Premium  -    -   

c) Retained Earnings  (46.35)  (1.28)

Balance at the end of the period (a+b+c)  (46.35)  (1.28)

5.1	 The Company has equity share having a face value of Rs.10/- each.					   
5.2	 Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares
Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date of the shareholders meeting, is entitled to one vote in 	
respect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholders meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders 
of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company after distribution of amounts payable to preference 
shareholders if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders			 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

3 . Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars
(₹.in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets  0.07  - 

Add: Adjustments during the year  0.07  0.07 

Total  0.13  0.07 

4 . Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars
(₹.in Lakhs)

 As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

Balances with banks:

(i) in current accounts  3.77  14.60 

(ii) in deposit accounts  -  - 

Cash in Hand:

(i) Cash on hand  -  - 

Total  3.77  14.60 

4 . Other current 

Particulars
(₹.in Lakhs)

 As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

Balances with other statutory authorities  3.21  0.06 

Pre-paid expenses  0.20  - 

Total  3.41  0.06 

6. Other non current liabilities

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

Related party payable-ABPL (intercorporate loans)  138.46  - 

Total  138.46  - 

6. Other current liabilities

Particulars
(₹.in Lakhs)

 As at March 31,2022  As at March 31,2021 

Other creditors  12.37  8.64 

Dues to statutory/government authorities  2.10  0.80 

Other accrued liabilities  1.05  1.00 

Total  15.52  10.44 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
8 . Other Expenses

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended           
31st March 2022 

 For the period from 
22 July 2020 to 31 

March 2021 
Auditors’ remuneration  1.00  1.00 
Legal and professional fees  7.58  0.33 
Printing and stationery  -  0.00 
Rates and taxes  29.61  0.01 
Repairs and maintenance  5.53  - 
Power and fuel  1.32  - 
Total  45.05  1.34 

7. Finance cost

Particulars  Year ended           
31st March 2022 

 For the period from 
22 July 2020 to 31 

March 2021 
Bank charges  0.09  - 
Total  0.09  - 

9. Tax Expense
(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended           
31st March 2022

For the period from 
22 July 2020 to 31 

March 2021
A - Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year  -  - 
Total  -  - 

8.1 Reconciliation of tax expenses to accounting profit                     

Particulars Year ended           
31st March 2022

For the period from 
22 July 2020 to 31 

March 2021
Accounting profit before tax  -45.14  -1.34 
Tax @17.16 %  -7.75  -0.23 
Adjustments:
    Expenses that are disallowed as per Income Tax Act  -  - 
    Expenses that are specifically allowed as per the Income Tax Act  -  - 
    Effect of deduction under section 35(2AB) of the Income Tax Act  -  - 
    Others  -  - 
Tax Expenses recognised  in the statement of profit and loss  -7.75  -0.23 
Income tax credit/(expense) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :  -  - 
Tax effect on actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit obligations  -  - 

8.2 Auditors Remuneration Break up

Particulars Year ended           
31st March 2022

For the period from 
22 July 2020 to 31 

March 2021
Statutory audit fees  1.00  1.00 
Certification charges  -  - 
Other matters  -  - 
Total  1.00  1.00 

8.3 Earning Per Share

Particulars
 Year ended 31st March 2022  For the period from 22 July 2020 to 

31 March 2021 
Basic EPS Diluted EPS Basic EPS Diluted EPS

Equity shares outstanding during the year  1,50,000  1,50,000  1,50,000  1,50,000 
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation 
of earnings per share  1,50,000  1,50,000  1,50,000  1,50,000 
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Financial Risk Management							     
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The 
Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial 
performance.The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
“a) Credit risk: 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, 
and arises principally from The Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and 
financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal 
to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company 
assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.”
“b) Trade and other receivables: 
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. “
“c) Investments: 
The Company has no investments in FY 2021-22. “							     
“d )Liquidity risk: 
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity 
risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the Company has unutilized 
credit limits with banks.
The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and 
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
The working capital position of the Company is given below:”							    

(₹.in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Cash & cash equivalents  3.77  14.60 

Investments in mutual funds (quoted)  -    -   

Investments in non convertible bonds/debentures (quoted)  -    -   

Interest bearing deposits with corporates  -    -   

Investment in commercial paper (unquoted)  -    -   

Capital Management Structure							     
“The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends on its equity shares. The Company’s 
objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value. 
The capital structure is as follows:”							     
The Company is predominantly equity financed which is evident from the capital structure table. 						    
	

 (₹.in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Total equity attributable to the equity share holders of the group  (31.35)  13.72 

As percentage of the total capital 100% 100%

current loans & borrowings  -    -   

Non current loans & borrowings  138.46  -   

Total loans & borrowings  138.46  -   

As percentage of the total capital -442% 0%

Total capital (loans and borrowings and equity)  107.11  13.72 
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9 Related Parties

Name of the related party Nature of relationship with the Company Country  of  Incorporation/Residential Status

Anthem Biosciences Pvt Ltd Holding company (100% holding) India

10 Balance outstanding with related parties (₹.in Lakhs)

Related Party Nature of outstanding 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Anthem Biosciences Pvt Ltd Payable (loans and advances)  138.46  -   

11 Key Managerial Personnel

Name Designation

Ajay Bharadwaj Director

Ravindra K C Director

Ganesh Sambasivam Director
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Neoanthem Accounting Policies 
1. Corporate information:

Neoanthem Biosciences Private Limited, was incorporated on (22/07/2020) under the Companies act, 2013. It is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Anthem Biosciences Private Limited based in Bangalore, India. The financial statements 
of the holding company (Anthem Biosciences Private Limited) are being prepared in compliance with Indian 
Accounting Standards. Consequently, Indian Accounting Standards have been adopted in the preparation of the 
Company’s financial statements.

 2. Significant accounting policies:

(A) Basis of preparation and presentation:

a) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016 as applicable. 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of 
relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date, March 31, 2022. These standalone financial 
statements were authorized for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 06, 2022.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis. 

c) Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas 
of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect 
on the amounts recognized in thefinancial statements is included in the notes.

(B) Accounting Policies 

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

(ii) Financial instruments:

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset(other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are 
included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place(regular way trade) are recognised 
on trade date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following 
categories: nonderivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account 
(FVTPL), non-derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost . The classification of financial instruments depends 
on the objective of the business model for which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial 
instruments at initial recognition.
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(a) Non-derivative financial liabilities:

(i) Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized at 
fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(C) Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probablethat an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of theobligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of thereporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation.When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivableis recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measuredreliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a 
contract are lower thanthe unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for 
onerous contracts are measured at the presentvalue of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and 
the expected cost of terminating the contract.

(D) Income tax:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
except to the extentit relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxationauthorities based on the taxable income for the period. 

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those thatare enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets andcurrent tax 
liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to 
settle on anet basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized fordeductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amount in financialstatements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition 
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction thatis not a business combination and affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilized.Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longerprobable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax 
asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realizedor the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date

(E) Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period.Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
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considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued 
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equityshares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the 
beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently 
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutiveequity shares are adjusted for bonus 
shares, as appropriate.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,2022, the ‘’MCA’’ amended 
the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below.

a.	 Ind AS 16-Property, Plant and Equipments:

b.	 Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;

c.	 Ind AS 103- Business Combination.

d.	 Ind AS 109-Financial Instruments.

e.	 Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

f.	  Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

These amendments are effective from April 01, 2022.The Company believes that the aforementioned amendments will 
not materially impact the financial statements of the Company.
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